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STEVEN HEER )
) NO,394913
PETITIONER ) MOTION FOR DESCRETIONARY
)] :
| ) REVIEWFOR UNTRUTHFUL AND
KAY SIKES, \
]~ UNFACTUAL OPINION DIV Il |
RESPONDSANT ) TREATED AS A PETITION FOR REVIEW
'

A Steven Heeb prG-se asks the courts to review the opinion
of the court of Appeals Division Il that is full of un factual informatian

B, Stéven Heeb will now.go through the apinion and desgriba the
pants that are not factual or true. The first page of the unpublished opinian
Is not proper and Steven Heeb was given a restraining order because Justin
.sent him on a mission to get Kay Sike%’add_ ress then failed to send Steven
ng‘b Avy CR 30 notificstions of the twa hearings that Tracy Brangdt prasided

over . | am sure ha did rot want Tracy Brandit to from mé that Justin Collier
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Sent me out on s mission to get Kay Sikes current address at his
I did not know at att about hearing dates for the ré‘straining orderon : {
10/21/201S and 11/18/2019 where the téstraining_ ordar was issuad by
Tracy Brandt . These two CR 30 violations are the cause for me to loose
alt faith In Justin Collier representing me and | was told nothing aboutthe
arder from him and found out about it going thirough alrport security,
June 8 thwasthe h'earirxg date | had Justin Collier set to get that
restraining order removed | made no attempt previous to thatand there.
was no p}obahle cause for the order 1o be placed upon me. My documents
filed witr; the court my sjtyation well and her here say statemants she got
from others did not justity defamating my character from her lack of ihtégr‘lm.:
Under RAP 3.2 CONSQLIDATING OF CASES this sfiould be joined
Justin Colliers case 39206-6-11f because of the mfa'nij:uiation of Justin Collier
. .and judge Travis Brandt, Justin Collier CR 1.1 1.2 1.3 and 1.4 and did what he
‘wanted when he wanted and talted to Tollow rute 1.16 declining or terminating.
fepresentation. As ézated [n the documents you have on the Justin Collier case
on page 292 of the January 10 th 2023 hearing on line 1 the iudg.é Is hbldlhé |
me rasponsible for tha failires of Justin Collier | ask the courtto read page 292

10 304 of thig transcript and the judge is weeong and prejudice towards ma.

FAGE A
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twant the court to now read the transcripts of the Qctober & th'

2022 hearing. Page?_a‘i through 204 inthe 'reading of those pages it

will show that | was only mads aware of two depositions one was

supposedly betora the February § th 2021 notification late afterngen

for February 11th at 10:()0 am in Wenatchee and the otheronewas.

an & mail on March 29 th at 2.20 pm that day that Justin Collier sent |

me . How would it be praper tor the caurt ta hold me accountable |
‘when | knew nothing about a depositionand was on the foad to

Mantana with my Sor to get a heavy piece of equipment that | needed

his help with. Justin Colliar has a total of six CR:BO violations rgprasanting

me. Hearing 10/21/2019 hearing 1141 8/2019 hearing 9?24[232@ faiting ta

serve natification and docurants for hearing, February 9 th 2021 for

February 11* deposition, March 22 nd natice of hearing and there were

no encryptad e mails from me saying | was not going to come and yes there

are e mails from ma telling him what 8 horrible job that hé did representing

mig and he set me up for troubles. The sixth CR30 violation is his E mail to |

me  March 29 th at 2:20 pm for a deposition he asked me to attend at |

his office at 10:30 am Justin Callier knew of this deposition date that was made

an March 22 nd 2021 at the hearing that he lied abdut me knowing anything

B 3 ﬁ
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That hearing the court of Appeals Division lif thinks that
tizokto get hotrible representation and violate CR30 rules six times'
and do all the thmg’s | have proven thathe has done then they drag
time Ut so tha Ghe!an'cbunty Superior court dismisses the case for
untimetiness when | received a judgement fq_r teck of representation
on lariuary 10 2023, This is absolute discrimination that the court of
Appeals Division 11l will be beld tiable for and Chetan county for
allowing impropriety in the court room and vio-tatiagths cotor of taw.
Stating Mr. Heeb failed to appear at multiple deposaitions is a lie.
his job that he has to have 1o pay M bills
Rule CR 45 STATES (3) (8) stétgs the court by which a subpoens
was issuad shall quash or modily the subpoena if it
(i) fails to.allow reasonable time. | am going now to refer to ggh_ibi;_éxthat
will be provided in the documents, This documant proves that on
February 11 th{ was working at my job and that the fatlowing week | was
on call working as well just as | stated. | have taken the brunt of Justin
lack of responaibility and there s definitaly thingsjudge Trav is Brandt could

have dane in his court to avoid impropriety and make things go smoathly,

PAGE 4
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Washington code, Judicia!,condiﬂcns 2.3 stateg that a judge shiall not
in performance of jud_i’c'ial'du(i‘es‘, by words or conduct manitestbias or
prejudice, or angage in h_a.rassmem . and shall not permit court staff,
court officials , or others subjectto the judges direction and control 1o do sa.

The transcripts of Chetan county Superior eourt 18-3-00275-04 allowed
thé_atturﬁeyé;land the judge hmselt and esgeciaﬂy tra-nscrip'isv of hearing date
3/22/2021 1o slander , deflamate and state unconfirmed and abusive things
about me that hid allowed in his courtall through proceedings along with his |
prejudice statements that Kay Sikes did everything right this is stated on'
page 121 tines ona through four of the Octaber 6 th haaring and at the January \
10th hearing 2023 an page 303 line three through seven the judge states that
Ms,;:éikes does evarything right again and that is not true at all becayse of the
followl n.g reasons and the judges prejudice misconductand not trye statements
about me not willing to take a deposition. First of alt my EXHIBIT 4 proves and [t~
be confirmext thaton February that | was working and thét | was on call that next
week from the 15 through 191K with three box cars, lustin Callier fever trled to set
anything up before the March 22 nd 2021 hearin gtook place that he lied about an '
encrigtive E mall from me stating | wag not coming to the hearing and that Is totally

@ btatant lie my E mails | am providing the court in EX.HIBIT"S prove this:

AACLS
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What took place at tha March 22 2021 h-earing that | knew nothing
about'what was said at that heéaring months.later when my tfangcr_i’ptmnist
transcribed that hearing, Justin Colliar knaw then of the Aprit 1 st
deposition and only sent me an E mail on March 29 th 2021-at 2:20 in the
:afternoon while | was on the road (o Montana with my 01 to help me get
.a heavy piece of equipment. CR 30 rules apply and judga Travis Brandt having
copys of these £ mails made no concem about how my attormey represanted
me as he should have under the previously described rule 2.3 and this judga
had no régaurd far impropristy in his court room:. The court can not state |
had a problem taking a deposition because as soon as | come back home |
E malled Justin Catlier and totd him | would be st his office first thing in the moming
morning even though | had gotten no sleep in the past 24 haurs. | tried to be
thers for the deposition but Justin Cotlier s&id that we could not do the deposition
becausa the court reperter rescheduled for anather job. '

Justin Collier then stated that evening that he woutd have them move it
eut for two weeks 50 | ¢an hava time to sleep . Justin Collier falted to do a5 he stated
and resigned as my council on Aprit 2 n d 2021 tailing todo anything during the 10
days of rasponsibility tg his client that he (s responsibla for.

Steven Heeb had every right to stata what he did to him as stated .

PAGE &
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in his E mails to Justin Collier because of his lack of representation,
The 'fnuow'fng prablems with the September 24 fzpéc hearing judge Lesiie;«-
Allen violated a CR 30 service-of a documant that not a court file stamped
document stated as being a settlement agreement. There was no such
courtlegal documant presented at that hearing. | told judge Lestie Alten
that | just seen the matrix that very morning forthe f‘irs"t" time. The judge
did not ask mie [f | wanted {he hearing 10 4o an she just continuad an with it.
Taprové the court of Appeals Division Il wrong about their Opinion
[catled Barpa‘ra their court clerk'and case worker there and asked her fora.
copy of the setllement agreerment that in the Opiniqn‘it is regaurdecd as alegal
settlement agreement she lookad for awhile and said there is no courtfiled
settlemant agreement and | stated to her that | k new that and their f)pinion

was wrong . | then asked her for the ancrypted £ mail that the judges stated

‘defense {or Justin Collier and asked her for a capy of that 85 well and Barhara

‘she did nat have a copy for that as well. | told her that Is whati thought that

the eaurt of Appeals Division lil opinion was thrown togetherwithout the
research of my documants for proot of my case in judge stiomey ;prejudice
to defeat me at all costs. The next problem with the Septembar 24 th 2021

hearing that does not have a court filed legal settlarmant agreemant ,

PAGE 7
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CR 37 sanctions can only be filed by themselvas according
torule 11 (b) her filing had & total of 16 pages with the last three being
the thrown together illegal matrix that has never been propetly
formatted and file stamped with the court clerk and is a violation
of rula five () so thera is no settlement agraement .
The next real big problem that people should goto jalt for is
April 29 hearing and want the court td read the entiraty of franseripts
of that hearing becauss | was very green at what | was stating and
Justin Collier put me in that position and caused the CR 37 sanctions
but everything | stated at that hearing was proper and true.
{ want to refarence that an page 59 lines one through tive judge
Travis Brandt wants there to be a settlsment agreement to be filed
with his court and the judge and attorneys all know this is filegat and the
documaent Is not even praper. In the transcripts it statés that the judge Is
gaing tarevigw the Saptember 24 2020 hearing bacause | say it was not legal
nor complete even though tha judge and attornays wanted [t that way.
Iam now going to now refer vo EXHIBIT 2 which is the minutes fited
June 28 2021 that state justin Colliar did no wrong and that is totally untrue.

This le a wrongful act,

E 90f65
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Nor wasthe matrix court filed with the court clerk so according
to Rule 5 filing with the court { @ ) defined there Is absalutely no !
settlement ggreement, The naxtprqblem- with September 24 2020
hearing was My CR 30 notice of the hearing date being less than 24
hours and Judge Leslie Allen was aware of that as well. The next problem
that took place was there was no finalizing that took place at that hearing,
The judge gave the parties titt Octobar 30" to respond for a time timit.
The September 24 2020 court transcripts lines one Hirough
séveﬁ clearly state that | am to receive a 5000,00 dollar settlernent
that Justin Collier and judge Travis Brandt baoth did nothing to see that
I got the $ 5000.00 while Kay Sikes camea upon this working mans property
and ook what she wanted when she wanted. .{usﬁn Collier totatly.la.ilad'
his client again bacause right after the thirty day time period he should of
had documents fited with the court for dismissal for ne aotion this cost his :
Iots of money and mental anguish. Justin Coliier failad his etient in dvery way
and judge Travis Brandt altowet this to happert in his court and allowed a
¢catch 22 situation 10 exlst because of his Irresponsibilitys serving hisclient.

The next problem is the March 1§ filing of Kambra Mellergasrds CR 37

sanctions . i ey A 7{: ?
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The judge Is absolutely on Kay Sikes side and uses Justin Collier

to make me ook bad and fo serve a judgement upan me. Fabruary 9
-gfternoon notice for Febryary 11 th deposition date and me working and
and being an call the following week was praper, Justin Gotllers March 29
at 2:20 in the aftermoon for April 1 st at 100G am Is noia proper CR 30
notification and the judge judge manipulated the wording of what took
place in Justin 'Coui‘erg and mine £ maiié and had no right to make'
Judgement Qpan me, ludge Travis Brancit was hightyprejudice to wards me p
and | want to $tate this also Justln Calliers law suit against Kay Sikes was r
nat approved by me dnd was niever shown to me before being filed with

tha gourt. Judge Travs Brandt after almost five and @ half mbnths from the-
September 24 2020 hearihg‘auawed thém to bring the lawsuilt forward us‘mg
my casd instead of them bringing their own case . Judgé Travis Brandt allowed
thern evarything to benefit themsetves at my expense and tha praviausly
awarded tive thousand doliars that was awarded to meat the September 24
2020 hearing he wiltfully and intentionally ignored . | asked Travis Brandt

@ recusa himselt In early 2022 and he refused to do so and has never had eny

intention to aliow the court rules that | quated have any meaning or value
or fairness hetfore the court..
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Amougst all the other court rules that | have quoted belng broken
by judge Travis Brandt and the attorneys is rule 4.6 (¢) which states you have
a deposition befors a judgement can be ade and my fifth $ixth and sevar
amendment rights have been violated by him and [feel what was dene in

this case wa's done with will full intent to set me up with no understanding,

The apinlans back graund  thestatement Steven Heeb did a
a tistribution of property with Justin Cotllar is totally untrue Justio Collier did
what he wanted when hie wanted without me being Invoived and without
my permission ,

the matrix referrad to is not a court filed document dumped upon me
with judge Leslie Alten and Justin Collier faggin-g itupen me Improperly
with nothing done within the required time limits,

| cannot appear at & deposition if | know nothing of itan d | have
describad the twa | knew of for Febuaruy 11 th and for April 1 st very thoroughly
in the court transcripts that was not read before Divisian Il made their
opinion against me Steven Heeb had just cauge for has taken plece and the,
county judges words are not correct. The Transcripts prove a predetermined

that with open minds the Division il judges should have reviewed b._fatte_r;

Fabe ||
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Amougst all the gther court rutes that [ have quoted being broken
by judge Travis Br_ﬁanm and the attorneys is rule 4.6 (c) which states ydu have
a deposition beforg & judgement can be made.and my fifth sixth and seven
amendment rights have been violated by him and | feel what was done in

this case was done with will full intent to set me Up with no undarstanding,

The opinlons back ground  the statement Steven Haeb did a
a distribution of property with Justin Collier is tatally untrue justin Colller did
what he wanted whan he wanted without e being involved and withaut
my permission .
the matrix refarred o is not a court fled doc-ume}a-t dumped upsen me
with judge Leslie Allen and Justin Qotlkar'fomihg it upon me improperly
with nothing done within the required tirne limits.

| cannot appear at a depositlon if | know nothing of it an d | have

described the two | knaw of for Febuaruy. 11 th and tor April 1 8t very thoroughly

“in the Gourt tanscripts that was not fead befare Division lil made their
opinion against me Steven Heeb has just cayse tor has taken place and the

county judges words aré not correct, Th_e_ transcripts prove a predetermined

case and with open r,ninds the Division H| judges should have reviewsd hettar..
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The opinlor an the top of pags 3 of the opinfon is & total lie by the

Division il judges making the pinlan and | refer them to the transcriptions

of the September 24 2020 hea ring arid read what was accurately stated and-
then it wag Kay'sikas that falled ta follow through in & imely 30 day tirms timit
requirement. The courts are biag and prejudice just what is stated on that page
and the court made thig a catch 22 situetion with Justin Collier warking for
oppasing council and it is abvious this courts opinion could care less about
court rules that have been broken In my defence and the absoluts manipulation
to attempt to make a non court filed non légal settlernent agreement ands scraw
me out, Mr heeb never did respend an the affirmative abaut“anything having to
da with Kay Sikes but Justin Cottier has done things repéatedty on his pwn
without Steven Heebs permission and definitely did more to hetp the oppasing party
dand that is Impropriaty of the (3w,

| don't have-any idea if Justin Collier got paid for assisting the opposing party”

but he is-absolutely lieing about any cryptic email because the court hag those

E mails from frie and | absolutely knew niothing about the March 22 2021
hearing the documents that | have provided in this réspanse proves my case that

he was just balng a trguble maker and state slanderous things-about me,

E 14 of 65
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What happenad in the court room on S.epftemh_er‘ 242020
was a short hearing put on record that the sourt needs to read the
transcript of. Mr, Coltier did all the talking and conferred with me
then mace statements to the court, On tha bottom of page thirty
sigitt s where Kambra Melter bringﬁ up the Ford Thunderbird st
last minute long after everybody initialed the matsix , On page
39 it statas the court took a 12:15 tilt 12:2'1 break whilg Justin
Collier and myself bave a conferance then Justin Collier addresses
the court. | am addressing the facts of this case, Kay Sikes attorney
and Justin Collier worked together creating this matrix that appeared
before the court for the first time the morming of the hearing at which
time | saw it for the first time that very morning. (fact) why would two
tegally educated attorneys bring before the court a three page document
that is not aven titlad Settlerient égreemént ,that does not have signature.
linas legstly for the petitionar and respondent ta slgn off on, The most ]
impartant thing is that it was never filed and recorded with the Chelan
Superiar court olerk’ and anather important thing is'my right were totally
ég{%%éﬂd}—gegee requirements not only by Justin Coltier but by judge

Lestie Allen as well when we met first thing that merning ; ;

PACLE /4
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(FACT) Kay Sikes atty Kamhra Mellergaard created this matrix
dacument over a period of time the court never told them they had to
know and make up that document in less that thirty minutes so how is
it proper before &ny court that my atterney Justin Collier demand any kind
of legal response out of me when it wes handed to me that very murning'
with rg time for review. The judge if she did her job properly would have
stated to all concerned that this hearing wil be called of and rescheduled
due to CR 30 service violations and it i S.teveﬁ Heeb’s rights to have five day to
axamine a new dacument that is titled 2s s seltlemeant agreement pnd is

in propér settiement agreement legal format and the most important thing

of atl this judge and all the judges and the court of Apeals judges and Supreme

court udges have abselutely disregarded my documents in the previous case:

before yau in case _§8?97& thatmy exhibit M that has case law about settlement

agreaments and CR2A legal requiremants. The courts had a respensibility to revigw
years age and took my money for raview and never even researched my materials

-and made sura that there is'e legal court filed document filed with Chetan Su peﬁor

gourt clerk and Martn Young knows thig {the clerk) knows there is no court
fité stamped settiement sgreement and | stated to him and askad him to put it

the court file notes that there is no settiement agreement and there is 8 CR 37

t
|

|
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Sanctians thst he knows was fited an March 15 2021 and the last three
_giajgés are that Improper matrix that is put with CR 37 sanctions that is
viclatlorvof Rule 11(b} stating sactions ars fited by themselves and
Martin Young knows this ag well and put note ef Rin the casa fila. | ;

Like ) have garlier stated after recelving the Divislon Il opinion
| called the CéU{i‘Ui‘ Appeals Divislon il court clerk Barbara who has been
my case worker and | have had many conversations with {she krows my
voice)j . | wanted proof of what the Division [l Judges stated ahout e ;
settlement agreémant and a copy of that E mait that justin Collier stated
that he raceivid fiom ma. Barbera researched the case and statad she.
don’t have o settlemernt ag_reamgr\t on fite nor the & mail. | stated 1o har
that Is right and | know that so please go tell your judges that ,

All the judges and attorneys that iave been Involved with my | i
cases absolutely educated with the rules of the taw 1o be an attomey
but the)f think it is of ok to disregard courtrule 11 () court Rule 29
which states any documant requirgd or parmitted to be presented to the
court or to a justice shall be filed with the Clerk in paper form, Rule’s (e)
Fiting with the gourt defined and | state again thare is no settlement :

agreement and the counts have put me through pure hatl,

PACE /g
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What hag been stated Inthis Division il opinion actually shows
Justin Ca{lierfaned to properly represent his client and his lles that he :
made at the March 22 2021 hearing transcripts and previous hearings
previaus hearings prove se. Thetranscript proves on page 59 provas that
ludge Travis Brangt and atty Kambra Meltergaard witl break court rules
and do underhanded deeds to try to justify to make & court filed
document that Travis Brandt can use egsinst men court . The court
needs to read all the transctipts of 19-3-00275-04 tl1isﬁudge cormmitted.
fraud and failed to ackhowledge anything in my behalf and totally
disregarded the 5,000.00 doltars thai | was awarded on September 24 '
2021, The transcripts will prove he had a predetermined prejudice towards
me and his description of s CR 43 (1) (1) Is not proper and he allowed Justin
.¢q£liar to work against me and allowed slander and impropriety in his court
room. My E malls prove my unhappiness with Justin Collier but they prove
the only two depositions that | knew about and that judges judgemeant against
Improper and illegat and the ¢ourt of Appeals Division Hi could have stopped
all of this from happening if thay would have given any merit to myexhibitM
provided in 387976 and compared to Chelan county Superior courts case

history, The deposition history Is simple as this for the twe depositions that |

PACE (]
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Recaived from Justin Colller were the February nineth E mail
at 1:30 pm reqqgs.ting that | be &t his office at 10:00 am on the 11
My reSponse to hirn is not polite hut he has caused mae problems and
has falted to properly represent me and this fs the third time he kas not
properly addressed me forhearings and this réquested deposition and
he has been made vary awara of my seasonal wark loads. By this time of
it was 139 days since the September 24 2020 hgaring thathad a thirty day
day time imit and it was his responaibility to putforth 8 motion for dismissal !
he dld nathing to represent me properly just took my maney. The facts are the
judige did not tike me talking in my E maits to Justin Cotlier the way | did and had hag
understanding and did not want to undarstand because he meant arm for me:
the easiest way he could brih-g' it to me. He allowed thig tase of mine to be’ |
five and hatf morths after thé September 241 2020 thirty day [imit, he atlowed :
the Margh 15 th fiting of the CR 37 sanctians with the Hlegal matrix that was never [
filed with the court ¢lerk in the form of 8 metion and done in proper procedure:
and is an absolute CR 30 violation of both judge Lestie Allen and Justin Collier |
allowing this to even to be presented in court . | requested the courts raview of

sllof the April 29 2021 court transcripts and in it the judge Travis Brandt states

he Iz going ta review the Septembar 24 2020 hearing.

PACE /€
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The materials | presented in court on the April 28 th hearing

showed him that | did not have knowladge of deposition notices of they

were not of CR 30 service requirements allowing impropriety intg his

the rules and laws are the same for everyona andto be trestad the same.
My Exhitsit 2 proves that the judge appraved lustin Califers vielation

CR 30 natifications 1o me and the E malls prove what | stated to him and

the E rslls prove that on March 31 st Justin Collier was going to set up

another deposition two weeks out that he never did do . Judge Travis

Brandt allowed an iliegal matrix to uphetd in court but not the tive

thausand dollars awarded te me and in effect he also broke CR 30 service

lawes as well. Going to Exhibit 3 Febuary whare | stated it is absurd he gives me

less than a weeks noticé becauseit wes late Tuesday afternoon exr‘zéc'tfi'n"g*'ri‘ie

be there Thusday morning when | was scheduled to waork that day and did .
then Thursday February 10 th at 12:05 | respond to Justin Colligr | am

promised to be or call . | am not daing anything next week and let him know

that he did not hande this (awsuit properly and | have a right 10 express my

opinion without the judge making a judgement against ma nothing was ever

¢aid that | would fot attend a deposition and the fact is | had na problem with

PAG E (7
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Attending adeposition but { need enough natice to 53y 10
Crites seed hiey | have a court date | need to keep for 3 deposition next. |
waak not leave them hanging . Just like Exhibit 4 states | have worked
for many years and it is a job that has to bé addrassed quickly getting: |
product to the rallears. Instead of making @ catch 22 lets put the !
responsibllity on Justin Callier and judge Travis Brandt and facs the true ;
facts All Justin Collier had to do was just give me a proper CR 30
service notice that gave me time to adjust my work schedule but it
never happenéd and none was ever given for any specific date for the:
woaek ofthe 15th 10 tha 19th saif the CR 30 service was proper during that f

[ !

time { would have asked to ¢change things and communicated with Crites f
to work on a schedule but that did not happen . Instead judge Travis Brandt :
wants te hald these, E_%:_maii#._pyer my head fora judgement and he had no
understanding for me for what this attorney failed to do and properly &
represent me and the transcripts of this case will prove he.had 8 ;
predetermined prejudice towards me all th?otggh the haarings and he g
refused to recuse himself in 2022 and continued on ne matter what procf
| brought before the court and court rules and for certain rute 4.6 { ¢ ) where

I was never given a proper CR 30 or natice of and it was never propeér. j



)

The opinion of the Appetlant show they did not properly review
my case and documents because they are siding with judge Travis Brandt
that feets | daserve a judgement (Faczt}éteven Heeh has neverstated nota a
Deposition but has reasanable concems about lees thar twa day notices.
Steven Haeh was never given s proper CR30 notice February 15 th and 19 th
and did stats he was on call with his work many times at many hearing dates.
Did this gver cancern the judge that | réceived improper CR 30 notices?
Just where are thess cryplical E mails that Justin Colller tells the court about
on the March 22 2021 hearing thiat ha absolutely lies ahout and says there Is
something wrong with me and has no idea why | am not at the hearing when in
fact therm was no notif'icatiqm*go ma, He made no &ffort to set up another
deposition until s failed CR 30 notification to me that was set at the March
22 nd hearing for a Deposltion to he taken on the first of Aprit at 10:30
-am at s officg on the first of Aprit . Why was it n ot appropriate for lustin
G'«;»uier to et me know right after the March 22 nd hearlng but he wait;e{_d;“ till
March 29 8t.2:20 pm to niotify mé whan L am on the road o Montana with'
help o get my worl done: You would think Judge Brandt knmwmg thése th’ings.-
would calljustin Colliar an his sctions. The court cant say Steven Heeb did

try to make Jt work with his short notice because after getting back in town

PAGEA]
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he gpinion of the Appeilant show they did not properly review

My case and dacuments because they are siging with Judge Travis Brandt
that feels | deserve a iu-dgemer;tx{t-‘am } Steven Heeb has haverstatednoto a
the march 31 stemait at 8:54 pm shows | got anold of justin
Collier and stated | would be in his office in the moming for the deposition.
Buthe stated that it would not work hecause of the court reporter .
“Then Justin Collier states that | will have them move It at leasttwo weaks
sa{ can have tima to sleep and ha failed 1o ever da that. ;

Now | aim going 10 reflect back to January 10 th 2023 hearing the judge

Travis b Brandt had a motien for reconsideration that | fited on October 7 th

2023 that he williulty snd i‘ntantion.a&y put off till the January 10 th 2023

Hearing which is 96 days old then on the 23 od December was.another -

haaring that | had that he said he was going ta make & decisian on by

Friday that week if ha cauld but he never even tried he put both of these
off until January 10 th 2023 then referring 10 the transcripts on pageJs2
the judge holds me responsible for the faitures of Justin Colller by using.

fequires atie for hewm o Rotity Wy

e CR B (1 wich e steles Finelan

' » . . P 4 \ ﬁ . tm@\;

52 % N
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Stated was my first notice far & Deposition which is stated in the
court transeripts and [tell the court | know nothing of that hearing and
was given ne notice of that haaring by E mail or any iggal CR 30 notice
and what | state ta the court is true and there was never any declarations

of mailing on any court matters just when he resignéd as my attgrney.

Therg is no way the court can properly say therewag any more than ]

two no’tifiﬁatﬁons and judge Travis Brandt made judgement upen me for the-

the first one that | had any correspondencs from Justin Collier on and that

was for February 9 th notice for a deposition date of February 11 tha day
that | was working . Justin Collier cames back on February the 10" and
asks what dy can | do next week and asks me what day can | do and |

tell him the truth thst | am on Apmmiseﬂ to be on call and that | am working .
as | have stated lustin Collier naver gave another praper CR 30 notice and | E
worked that week as plannad . Without & proper CR 30 fatice for the week i
of ?ebruary 1510 the 19 th the judge has no right to hald that tver me because |

I never violated anything because there was no notice and Justin f;puier

must have said some things that | did not know abaut because it escalated into
March 22 ng hsaring where | was put down by all and Justin Colliar states |

den't know why | would not show up at this hearing and states he has a cryptic

PALE 23
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And s farr .
Hthese are the facts and Barbara who has been iy case worker -
and clerk at court of Appeals Division lif could not find this settlement

nor that cryptic £ mail and Justin Collier Is a ligr and has fraudulently ctalms

there is a legal courtfiled settlament dgreament and there is not one on file
at the Division il court records and judge Brandt and the Appeltant court |
need (0 come to terms with that and hotd Chelan County andthemselves E
accountable, Golng back to p'age 292 lines twenty and twenty five the judge
agraes with me that | have to have a five day notice tor a deposition but he:

don't uphold that because he says the twd day notice was not vatid for

February 11 th deposition because | was working but | refused another date

is what is described on page 295 lines 5 through 9 from judgé Travis Brandt

and thatls & lie and | was not unwilling to da anything the court asked of me [
_but the facts are | had a right 1o say | amnat daing anything that week hecause ;
{haré was no written CR 30request for that week for me to respend to any certain i
date durlng the 13 th o the | gt was on call like | sald and Justin Celllar put
forth no effort for any other time and itis shown in the court transeripts there was }

QLN et went ot At after the March 151 CR 37 sanctions which the judge

. NAAY rying shesk inanen L
AL ‘&ammee\\mgaam cm\m\xte,q_\mm_m\ngm\ea _ [
g BrandiL AR RO e :
’ { ot (t\eﬁ.geﬁ\ememagtaeme
gna not Y ,

! o ntillegattarmat A /)
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The settiement agreemeny
*MENT agreement nesds 10 e (f Ninar handt. . |
008 07 10 heaing
and properly formatted with signature tines and be filed with the
‘courtin the form of 4 motion it cant be manipulated into a hearing with

CR 30 violations of both jucdge Leslie Alien and Justin Coltier. | am

going 10 now taka you back to page 294 and at the top of that page 1

thraugh 11 judgeTrayi_s Brandt goes on (0 state what he has many

|

|

|

times through out this case and, ftshows his sbsolute h desire to E
throw me un der the bus by stating Kay Sikes and her atiomey :
l

did everything right an March 15 th 2021 they all did év&rything wiong E
in atteript ta ¢reats a settlement agreement and the judge Travis |
Brandt goes on ta say my statements on February 10 th for the week |
of the 15 th 10 the 16 th with no CR 30 issued for that time of any certain

date requested puts me uncopperative with the court IS rot ploper o

true and he had no right to evat place any judgemert ugon me and ta

CR 11 (b} 2 rules snd rule 5Tor Mareh 16 CR37 Sanctions filing ana he
never had any right 1o ever hold over me his total preponderance urfprej_udiqe‘

he made upon ma for years and | am sure hié never though! would research

s wronghul acts and hotd him accountable and now tha Appellant court’

hthe \ents | provi therm.
fallad to research the documentst grovged to

totally P if [\
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My testimony to the courts has been totally viewed as fot of value

\ and even though | paid for It to be properly reviewed | have been judged

repeatadly as something less with ne vglue. held to my court docxuments.
The last paragraph on pags 6 of the Division Hl opinion | have discussed
thoroughly and i is not proper for 2 persen to hire an attorney to represent
him and violate the described six three GR 30 viotations and all the other’
rules of impropriety that hé has broken and as stated the only two
Depositions Justin Collier ever addressed to me were the February %th

natice for the elavanth of February and the March 29 th for the April 1¢

depositiorand [ have discussed this very thoroughty and no CR 30 was aver

made for the'time | was an call the 15 th through the 19 th of February and
was riever uncooperative with the court to justify and judgement against
me angl Justin Collier had & job to do protecting me that he did not do end

it Is not proper for the court to hold me responsible for the Februery 2 nd
notice ot deposition Kembra Mellerzasrd supposedly gave Justinwhen | arm
nat made aware of a deposition untit February 9 th at 1:10 pm deposition
for & moming deposition on Febn__xary 11tha day I was working shown by

axhibit, ludge Travis Brandt made an impraper judgament me with CR

43 (f) (1) Justin Collier is your problems chitd not me and he did not pratact me.

PACE 2¢
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The courte have . ,
ourts have been relentless about dumping the responsibilitles

of lustin Collier on Steven Heeb and the court i readly to throw him

bus anytime that thay think they can getaway with it The opinion
on page 7 does not address the real and improper actions of the court
and fraud was committed and not by accident . On page fifty nine lines
one through four the iudge' Travis Branqg states and the settlemant
agreament you filed that, | believe , [ judst want tg make sure , on
March 15 atong with your original motion snd memgrandum for CR 37
sanctions which were tatally rmade and caused by lustin Colliers lack
ands improper representation not by anything | did or refused ta.do.
The raal impraper part of this CR 37 sanctions is the matrix which is the
last three pages of the GR 37 sanctions that is Travis Brandt calls a

setflement agreement on the paga 59 transcript and the facts are agam

as | previously stated by rule 29 and in rule 5 all otlons and court reviewad
documents have o be filed the Chelan Gounty Superiot court clark and this
what judge Travis Brandt does not have a court filed stamped setttament

thet was requirsd five days belore the Septamber 24 2020 hearing and the

judge wants © inthis impro

it was'st
]udge‘ﬁavus Brandt and poth attorneys gommitied fraud and

OAAE 27

perway get thia matix filgd with the court 50

ated
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That way in my brief that was flled with Division Il court and instead of the:

judges respondr‘ng {olt properly and doing anything far my defense t.héy

1Ty 10 cover g the fact that on March 15 th 2021 judge Travis Brandt and

the attomays were trying td gef the matrix filed in Chelan county Superiar

court butit wasnot fledasa mation béfﬂf& the f;{erk‘and It was not file

stamped.and | said all this In my brief and these Divislon Il judges try to

be an accessary to wrong dolng and don't aven bring up the very fact that,

there is not » settlement agreement that is file stamped motion and legal

and proper bafore the court which s absolute discrimination and a violation

of my emendment rights, All these judges should be in big troubls for their

consistant deprivation of my rights and failurs te giva proper recognition of

my décuments before the court. This casé should hava been finalized withirt

60 days of the September 24 2020 hearing with a proper mation for dismissal

and with what | stated In my documents and the transcription of the April

29 th 2021 hearing should have ended this case aswell but twisted lies of the

court shown In EXHIBIT 2 shows the judge violating my testimony and transcripis

and States Justin Gollier did nothing wiong wher intact he allowed the filing of

March 152021 CR

prought me harm

37 sanction materials and wes an éc.eessmg to all actons that

10 this case allowing it to cont?‘

@ on with sanctions prought.

.

B 29 of 65




o

The Division fll clerk knows there is no court filed settisment

and stated so but the Division Iil judges are trying'to hide it and manipulate

around it trying to change the meaning that was$ brought in the brief filed

Division lll na court filed proper \egal settlement agreament. | Gannot

how the court are atways trying to pull samething dver and take my money
for a fair and proper ravisw of my ease. On page 8 the Division Il opinion
speaks of the ordering of'sancﬁuns and | have already given my explanation
forshat In previous pages an d it wa$ totally brought on because of justin
Callier failing in his duties as an attorney and judge Travis Brandt refusing ta
address slander and mpropriety in his court raam with his prédetermined.
pradjudices that Kay Sikes and her attorney do evaryth;ng right shat the }udge
states that in I=\e.arihg;_ after h@"aring and with their homea town gang how did |

ever have a chiance when in fact it is rumored there is betting going on who

wins the cases . | have a friend that Is ' business owner and knows lots of

people in Wenatchee and the courts have been In trouble before for wrangful

acts upon their gitizens.
Rivision Il opintan on page & the mstertal | have presentad ta the court

proves this very easily that rute 4.6 { ¢ ) was violated and how | addresséd the

judgos lanuary. 10 2023 vuling using rule 43 (1} ( 1} as justification tor me not

FAGEZT
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The Division Nl clerk knows there is no court filed settlement
and stated 84 but the Division It judges are trying to hide it and manipulate r
around it trylng 19 changeé the meaning that was brought in the brief filed i

on page 282 of the transcripts and then on page 295 lines five through

elevari that | have already described throughly and talked about being on

the 15 th to the 19th’ that my exhibit 4 proves my case and the Judge has no
right to pass judgement upon me because there was never a CR 30 issued

for any one of those days 1o appearfor a depasition but the judge refused to

find any impropriety in the CR 3@ that Justin Colller issued at 1:10 In the after

noan an Fabuary 9 th for a 10;00 am deposition tor a day that | had to worlk and

was on call thet day on Febuary 11 th. Then gaing back to page 292 lines 23
through 25 the judge states |.am right that they need five days notice S0 he
contradicts himself and he had na right to make any judgement upan me
bacauss | was nat daing anything s stated on page 295 lines five through

ataven that the judge states | was not willing to participate in a-lawsuit simply

béecause thera was no GR 30 served for the dates of 15 to the 19 th period .
and then of coursa an page 294 lines one through five the judge says his
repeatad predetermined quote that Kay Sikes and her Attarney do everything

right but the fact is Travis Brandt could have done something about Collier




)

Atong time ago &t the Aprit 29 th 2021 hearing because Justin Coltier
made these_ two day or tess CR 30 services and |t was before the judge that
day with my motian that he be hetd respensible and whent Justin Gollier
statad he was going ta get me another deposition date and he never did
anything . An'ybody ceuld slander me make untrue statements abgut me
and thé Judge would allow that that because the judge as he states Kay
Sikes and har altorney does éverything right in the court of prepond arance
of prejudice and that is exactly what this judge did to me and | hired an
attorney that the judge worked with lo sef me'up and allowed this improper
ju_dgament forced upon me'that cost me more than whiat was quotad In
court and cost me over thirty aight thousand doltars . Which has put me
in my county taxes so they want all the vears paid at orice now for a total
of fifty two thousand dollars and what this prejudice court did ro me
caused this. The judge knew by documents [ gave himon April29 th
that CR 30 laws had been viclated and the judge could care less how -
lustin Gollier set me up just a catch 22 situation that Steven Heeb was niot
given proper CR 30 notices but S,té\qeri Heel was held accountable for his
attarneys fallures and knew nothing of the first deposition t am ac’cuséd

unwillingly not attending and [ have treated like blatant Udr always.
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The optnion of the court of Appests Division Il page 9 does nat take inte
consideration that this September 24 2020 hearing was a proper CR30
‘service hearing that judge Leslie Alleri violated C R 30 service laws as well
because she allowed the hearing top continue when | informed herearly on
that | had never seen this matrix before and knew nothing about s content.

Qn thing that is pertactly clear no matier wat the court rules sey tam
still at fault, The judg'e should have dismissed this hearing and stated this
gentleman has the Tight to review this document for tive days and setupa
new hear'in‘g‘ dats nohody deservas to be beat todeathwitha documeant
they know nothing aliout , Kay Sikes Kembra Mellergaard and Justin Cotliar
allworked togetherto create this matix document that was not a court filed

motion five days before the hearing and served properly on mé. It does not. t

have proper formatfor a motion before the court and has no labeling stating |
that It is a settlement agreament . The judge Is responsible documents I
!
presented beforé ethe court and there is nothing legal and proper about |
this hearing and the judge ordered that averyone injtlat that matrix before
there was any Issue made of cars before we maved Intatha court réom
for things to be recorded. This hearing was absclute manipulation of my

rights with no resolve and certainly not a legat ssttlement agreement and



3
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The hearing had a thirty day tima Hmit for completion and they

chose to let this matter go for five and a half months and then
Judge Travis Brandt did not r{aquir‘é thern to make there own new case
he atlowad them 1o use my case _na; the Judge had no consideration
for the five thousand dollars awarded to me in the hearing ha ran
right over the 1op of ihat s well, it is easy ta see by the transcripts
arlid documents of this case that it was total collabaration of two
attorneys and a judge seeking to label me as the looser of this case.

D STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Thare has‘beaﬁ"ab;ommi callusion and coltaboration 1o obstruct
Steven Heeb of a fair triad in Chelan county fustin Goltier works with this
judge as an attornay regularly snd does not want to ba in bad graces with
with Tracy or Travis Brandiand the transcriptd stiow he dig nathing to put
his ctient in & better position instaad he requested i go fin d out where
Kay Sikes was tiving and his reason he 's;atgd for the request was so he
wanted her address to.mail her documents. It was a very lang wait for
hearing because of covid rgsui'ctians:The'éaéé summaery { EXHIBIT 5)
shows that on 7/22/2020 the trial was cangsled why i§ the persons name

not stated on the gocument ? can anyone cancel a trial?

FALE 33
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Shautd not the person cancelling the trial e required to identify
themselves and If ba nated on the case summary? As we look at the:

«case summidry it can be clearly seen that before the 9/ 24 /2020 there

was never a setttament agreemant motion befare the court. Justin Collier
had no eomimurication further with me efter the settlement hearing until

he sent me the Febuary ninth CR 30 notice for a Febuary 11 th deposition,

There is nothing on the case summary until 10/26/2020 and sgain on
10430/ 2020'5» non jury trial is canceled is cancelled sd who ¢anceled this trial
and why was the trial sanceted 7 was It because there was abselute
coltabotation of two attornays a‘nd a judge ? was this pot & violation of rule
4.8 (¢ }whare | had to have'a depesition befors atrial and judgemen t made?

‘Thera was ong thing far certain there was nothing done within the thifty \
day time Umit of 8/24/2020 hear&ng date and my attorney informad me of fathing
and did nothing in my defence.

These are the facts of wrong deing and illégs| hearing of 9724 /2020 |
1. there wore no CR 30 notices of the hearing 2. Theré was ne court file \

stamped motion for a settlement agreement 3. Thete was a2 CR 30 violation

by judge Leslis Allen for thig hearing to go on sfter | stated 1o her ~early that

‘-

moraing that| had never that matrix before she should of called oft the hearing

PAGE 34
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4. any judge wolld know that matrix was nat of proper format
with sigha-ture- lines for plaintiff and respondent to sign aoff an and It was
not 8 legal file stamped motion properly served befora the court.

8. Judge Leslie Allen should have nover order us to initial that
document yntil there was abisolute certainty there wera.no further Issues

‘about what was in that document and really to uphald my defense the caurt

is responsibie-and the attorneys for making sure things aré proper hefora
the court before ahythiﬁg is initialed andthe document is proper before

the court.

§. Justiri Collier made all the statements In the hesring when it was®

recordad not me ,.
7. The hearing had a thirty day time Umit stated by Judge Leslie Allen.

8, Justin Coltier and judge Trav Is Brandt never gave any recqgn}t}on
to the five thousand dollars that Ig described on page thicty eight of the
transeriptions in the first paragraph but they want to take from that hearing
an ’megal non court ﬂ&ed matrix that is nat even tabeted ds a settlement agreement
and use it against me when her and her son came ento my property and took
things when they knew I was gone doing my work,
9.1t was not 3 tevel playing fisld at this heating it was.a collaborating

ot two attorneys and @ judge that was pushing things not proper before court.

FALEZS
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The wrc_,)ngml acts go heyond just Chelan county Superior court
they go to the Appellant Divigion il and Suprema court and none of these
courts have not bean abla to provide me with a fila stamped motion for a
settlement agreement from Chelan county Superlor court. .Cas'e. summary

of that court shows ane des not exist. Fact the Appellant court and Suprema

viewed my previous case 387976 with Kay Skés and my EXHIBIT M was fotally

disregarded that describes case taw in Washintan State and proved thére was
not @ propsr legal settlement agrae-mem;and all your courts had to do s look

at Ghetlan courts case summary and see that there is sbsolutely no motion

and settlament agresment ever filed with that court but th& gourts can altow for

my tife 1o be ruined by the ctiong of the courts for that i$ perfectly fine .

Let me make one thing perfectly clear right now the documaents that have
beentfiled with Chalan caunty Superior court and the p_r_oseéutors office are-
extensive and have cost me very deeply but | know how yourr court works from
preﬁéus éaseé and | know littie to no time Is putinto reviewing my documents

5

to examine the wrong doing that exists and therefora the.appellant tourt has

wranglully teken my money for considerstion for me . Fagt the courts so far

have totally have discriminated against a working man and | can easily prove

-what | say. Steven Heeb was never notitied of a November 17 notice of depasition,

FACE 3¢
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The couit needs ta read the tianscripts of this case because during
time | represanted myself in:2022 there lots of things that | set the judge.
straight ori but he aliowed his previous predjudices towards me ta comtinue

and did nothing about bringing justice for me. To him itis a simpte mind set

and itis proven and stated by the judge himself Kay Sikes did evecything right

by hisactions'In court and statements in court Kay Sikes did sverything right
is in the Otober 6 th transcripts and in the afiusry. 10 th 2023 and they are
simply untrue statements ; Tha Apiil 29 th shows the judges total desire for
Kay Sikes to win this case by justwhat he states on the top of the page 53 and
shows that ha Wad fo regard for my fiva thousand from the 9/24/2020 hearing [
but he thinks it is appropriate to calt that unlawtul non court filed document |

that he calis a setitemeant agreement and the CR 37 sanietions are fited

togethier with together on March 15 th 2021 and | state perfectly in my brief
‘to Division ll] the wrong actiens of him calling that a settlament agreement,

-and what does the Division ill judges do they totally agdin refuse the fact that

thers never was & court filed motion for a Setttement agraement and thiera is not:

ong listed in the Chélan Superior court case summary , &arﬁe.ra thair court clerik

and case manager knows it but the judges who wrote their opinion de not want

to admit it ar any wrong doing for allowigg

7

Travia Bramdt to make use of a carrupt
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Nor sourt file stamped motion for a settlement agreemant by the
rules | have previousty described RULE 5 and rule 29 .whic_h stata doguments
have to bia court filed with the court clerk.. The judga has to file.all things-
before Gourt with the.court clerk to be legal before gourt butobviously the
Division il court i fine with unfiled documents. judge Travis Brandl on April
28 th hearing was told the truth by me and he had enough to stop harmful
brought by him upon me to hava stopped the hearing forthe i’mpropn’ety

and wrongful acts that had already been forced upon me but he did not
because he already had Justin Coltier set me up with 3 deposition that | was
never givar figtlca of and at that hearing | gave proof of the depositions
that ! did know of, Regardless of thatthe Division lilzourt and Chelan judgn
“Travis Brandt think it proper for a client to hire an attamey and you can
prove In .c_:'ault' that aitorney never géve you notifications of depasitions and
you gat nailed for what they didn't do with a CR43(f}{ 1) when you claarly
properly brc:ught gvidence to court that Fébuary 9 th 2021 was the vary fiest time

you ever knew-anything about any deposition, Fact the judge should have said

-at the hearing then and thare | want you to prove it and | would Have but no he

wants Byeryona to accept the fact thet Steven Heeh is a liar wher in fact the

judge himself g an absq/_l;’e maniputating Har and the Divigion lIl judgeswho

e Y
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Have reviewed this case and documents don't want to accept
the fact that there never was a November 17.2020 as tam now made
aware of after (ooking at the courts ¢ass summary for a deposition
but | have ng Idea’if Justin Coliler g&t it or not butthet notlce was never
to me, The materials that | provided to the court on Aprit 28 th 2021
should have made me clear and the case be dismissed but the ju’-cfge in
actions are totally clear Kay Sikes does evarything rigm and he continues
on with his prepondafance of prejudice that | will prova with the materials
that hs held agalnst me for the first depaosition notice that | was ever given
which was Febuary 8 th at 1: 30 pm fora Fabuary 11 th moming deposition,
My exhilit 4 clearly shows my sghedute being that | was on call working oo the
11 thas | stated | was. What the cournt needsto de If they think | am lying
have Justin Collier prove he gave me notice for a deposition for the November
17 court filing and also for that cryptic £ mail which is a absolute le.
Now | am going totake the court 1o the January 10 2023 hearing
which the damages of it to me is from Justin Colllers failed six CR 30
failed service notifications that what [ have rerd abréut the day of service
count and thare has te ba five days afterwards. Page 292 lines 1 b

through 25 tatks sbout lawyer responsabibties and the fudge states
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The facts is that on the top of the pege the judge states that
Kay sikes did everything right in lines one through 4 but even w:th the
copys of my E mails the Judge still says that on ten and eleven she --
Febuary 2 nd that's way more than five day$; Allican sayto that is you
koew of thiese Improprietys since the April 29 th 2021 an d you chose to
hotd them over my head ingtead of giving 3 fair trial wherg | gct &
deposition ingtead of Rule 4.6 { G ) being viclated and my constitutional
rights being violated , Travis Brandt saw how Collier withdrew and did not
make him be responsible what was jn his E malls end duties,
Page 294 line 15 through 17 arg tqtag{y untrue statements and is not
shown stated of reflécted in my E mails the judge states then then and it's
not that you didn't show up ; it was never scheduled because you sald I'm

not—| don’t have—i cant do it . Fact what is talked shout hera is for the:

* Febuary 9 th E mail that was for the 11th less than two days rictice and

the judge blames me for the schaduling when all the court and artorney
hand to do was give me a proper CR 30 which never tid happen fram
Justin Collier and | am again blamed for his responsibilities. FACT ng where

does it ever state | would break a proper CR 30 notification.

Page 294 lina line 18 tingugh 201 staw t<7he Jugge that Fam working

FA
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At the bottom of the page [ am right | do need a five days-
natice to be shie ta do that . So with that coming from the judge
 lets go alltha way back to the September 24 2020 hearing because
twa CR 30 violations at that hearing  five day notices ) as the judge
described and there is no court fite stamped motion for settlement
égmemémt proper at that hearing Just what the attorneys and judge
shawn an page 59 ane through four at the Aprit 29 th hearing.

So now (ets go back to pege 234 and Ists take the statement
the judge quotes me on and this quote frum me s from when Collier
first notified me of the less than two day notification for Febuary 9th
atternoon for the day [ was working on and did work on Febuary 11™

.80 said 10 Him on Febuary 9 th when natified that is absurd | am very
husy this time.of year s what was said about his iess than two dey
notification , Justin Collier had taft me out of twa ﬁeairiﬁg_s and failed to
give me proper services for the September 24 2020 and for that with'

justoause | was not happy with him and| hag not heard apything from
him since the September 24 2020 hearing date so | was ot overty kind

or friendly towards him since her was working for the opposing side.

PTG
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Then the judge states right so—and - | can understand that as

shoutd for the ( first notice for a deposition § because why would an

gttorney gitvensuc-h a CR 30 if they was not trying to ¢ause problems for.

that person. The judge gaes on to talk about Febu’a-r‘g 10 th and what

s stated in lines 21 to 2915 about the Febuary 10 th £ mail and the

doss not state what the judge says itdoes on page 296 for the 101th

of Febuary . what the E mall does state is what can you do next week?
‘81 11;49 ami what | rapfied to him abouthls Emaltis tam

promised to be ori call next | am not doing anythi'ng{naxt week |s what

was actually sald and ther | go.on 1o tell him, about his poor

rapresentation,
This s thie way | would be sure the law would interpret this

and | did not lie about anything and my EXHIBIT4 backs this up
I was on ealt there is nothing for me to do until | get 8 proper
GR 30 that gives the date for the deposition and | was never given that

and if | would have communicated to make sure the date far the

‘was taken care of and respended to, The judge hed no right to give me

any jJudgement or state | did anything wrang when thers is no

propar CR 30 that s;zébean served upon me. The judge stated that he
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The judge stated that he understoad abiout the Febuary 9 th
less thar two days natification bei'ng understandable for my work.
What the judge fails to undarstand Justin Collier falled to
give me another CR 30 for anytimé af any place untit March 28 th
at 2:20 pm was the next CR 30 that was given. The time | stated that |
was on call was trom the 15 th to the 19 th of Febuary and he could
done his job and given mie a propsr CR 30 for me to réspond to but
itwas his respensibility for him to lie to the court about a cryptical
‘and lie sbout ma ever being served natice of the Marchi 22 nd
hearing where evarybody standers me and it Is set up for another
,dep_osltl-bn c'i'a-te for April 1 st. Although Justin Cotlier knows the:
deposition Is for the first he stll does not give me a proper cH 30
and serves it upon ms on March 29 th as stated above.
What the judga stdtes on page :_ZQS is improper and untrué i

lines 5 through 15 first off there was only one CR 30 n all of Febuary

and that was on the 9 Wy for the 11 th improperly done and the judge

admits that. As | have alreadyastatéd then when Justin Collier addresses:

next week on the.10 th he does not give me ahather CR 30 ta have to

work with, | cant work ;ﬁa sv’:.?ule’ untit | have a date given to me..
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My staterment back to Justin Cotlier ori the 10 th was proper and
proper and true | am promised to be on call, |.am not doing anything
next wagk . There was nothing for ma to do because he never gave me
any CR 30 notification to be anywhere at anytime for 8 dg-pﬁsiﬁbn‘-
torthe ngk of the 18th to the 19 th of Febuary .  don't setup the
depositions and their place taken at that Is the cournts or Justin
Colliers uty,

What the Judge states on page 295 tines 7 through 9
So that shows the court an evidence by you of unwilting_ﬁneéé to
participate in g lawsult that you filed , right?

And no that is not right and it was (inpropar for that judge to

~ ever say that and what should frustrate the judgé i3 the way Justin

Collier and what he did to fils client,

The judge goes on to ta say on 295 lines fourteen through 15
your not willing to do anything next week or the fcttgwi‘ng week and that
s 3 absolute bilatant tie with the desira to set me up and th,ié; judga
and judges so far have aitpwed Justin Cotlier to cause me five

years of damages and with the opposing sides beneflt,

The judge had no righmm&?%mz}e  for samething
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That Justin Collier failed 1o schedule for that week of ih& 15 th
to the 19 th and this is the was it was all through this case
manipuiatﬁign and Kay Sikes Is always right and the Appeliant
judges decided thisproper action as well:and 9o not give my
dacuments proper review, On the justin Cofliar case the
Appelant courts have tet that case go tor over a year daing
nothing about the wrongful acts of him, Then it ;g‘ot“g’mn back
Ghelan Superior court and they threw it out because they state
timelyness regardless of damages caused by lim |n a judgement
on Januery 10 th 2023, The courts want me responsitile and abel
me incorrectly and allow the inexcusable acts §f pf these of thesg
peopls to be allowad when the court is supposed to uphald its.
inte'gri‘ty ta the people it serves . No justice has been served 1o mie
just attarmpt 1o banksupt.
£. ARGUMENTQF THE CASE
These are wrong an d horrific. acts deseribed wall my documents
i prepared forthe eourts much of the opinion of Division was not
addressing truthtigd facts it was obscuring wrongiut acts.. What |

have statéd in this document is proper and true and the courts

FALE 44

To: +15094564288

t

H 46 of 65




Jare oy cvzs U143 WU I-US) From: +15092152886 (Othello ACE Hardware)

To: +15094564288 47 of 65

i

|

I

|

Steven Heeb has long been victimized by court prejudice

HIEVER 4 |

. |

and is prepared too take my matters to to higher authority :

4 o i

if | peed to brin g justice to this case . my problems and documents ‘
heve already been communicated. RAP RULE 18.8 and

RAP RULE 2.3 apply to these cades to promote justice. 't
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BERESFORD ¢ BOOTH e

LAWYERS

The CR 2A Agreement

W §

Inv all coses, lowyers are required to abide by rules s Uiﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁ @guﬂ ik s’hmgiﬁﬂ e
Superior Court Rule 2A {CR 2A} s a rule dassgngn lo bind the parfies in o lowsuil lo on agreement,

The rule states as follows:
RULE ZA

|

t

|
STIPULATIONS. ;

.

Ne.cgreamenl or consent betwaen parlies or atiornays in respect f the proceedings In a cause, he
purport of which is disputed, will he regardad by the court unless the same-shall have been mads e;md
ossanted lo In opan court on the recerd, of enfered in the minutes, of unless the svidence !herecf} shall
ba In writing and subicribed by the attornays denying the sams,

CR 2A aperates in conjunction with RCW 2.44.010, ¢ statute the deals with the autharity of an \
wherney. RCW 2.44.010 reads, In pary, os tollows: "An alrarmey and counselor has authority: (1] To
bind his or her client in any of the proceedings in an aciion or speciol proceeding by his of her %
agreement duly made, or entered upon the minutes of the court; but tha court shall dtsragqrd all |
agreements end .Jmufai:om in relotion lo the conduct of, or dny of the proceedings In, an aciion|or

special proceeding unless such agresment or stipulafion be made i dpan cou, or in pressnce \:sF the

clerk, and entered in the minutes by him or her, or signed hy the party agalnst whom the soms iE;
alleged, or his or her aitorney.... |
E
A party in ligation will most likely encounter the term CR 2A or a CR 2A Agreement following
mediation. Should the parfies settle their matter i mediation, the terms of the settlement vill be |
memorialized In wriing—a CR 2A Agraement, The Agreement, once signed by the parlies :md/" or

their altorneys, binds the parties fo the ferms of the agresmant,

By Washington State Alleimey $: Scatt Burkhalier ,
BERESFORD BOOTH PLLC (425] 77¢-410Q www.beresfordlow.com x
EERESFQRE? BOOTH PLIC hos mads this confant available to the genergl p_u:bf:lc: foe %nf@rmc.xtk_mn}
purpases only. The Information on this sire Is not inended to gonvey legal epinions or ieg_’c;l_a’d\f%;@
(

|
'
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Don't Forget the Memorandum
of Settlement!

JUNE 1. 2010MAY 16,2013 / USAMWA

By: Michele Sales | Mediator; Arbitrator

wordp _
mediatot m‘ﬁmmends that the parties’ ctraft and cign 2
Memorandum of Settlement at the conclusion of what appears to be
a successful mediation. The Washington, Supre*ue Court recently re-
emphasized the need for such a wilfing in its decision of Tn re

Diseiplirary Flot:eeaing of Bradley R.-Marshall , 279 P.34 291
(2009},

Part of the complaint against attarney Marshall involved whether &
settlement had begn reached al mediation? by a King County
Supérior Court fudge. The court noted that “most, {f not all, of
thuse present belleved some settlement was intended”2 , including
thejudge.3 However, two of the Plaintiffs decided that they did not
warit to settle, Shortly after the mediation, the Defendant’s caunsel,
sent ¢ reledse and settlement agreement that those two

Plaintiffs refused to sign. According to the charges and findings,

Mr. Marshall then attempted to force thuse clients to prmeeci with |
e settlement against thetr wishes.

bipstheemwa.comZe 10STAgnt. -farget tha-memprgndum-gf setifamentf
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it | PRIGEL NG MSMOMANAU 0! Seidement | weasmIngIn [
While the facts of the Marshall case are not ones we hear about on a I
re‘gufar basis, the issue of one party trying to renege én a settlement |
cloes raise its ugly head at times. It may eecur because someone: 1
close to the party {spouse, parent, significant other) who did not , |
attend the mediation and witnéss the reasons or basis for the
settlement tells the party that setilement was a bad idea, Other
times, It maysimply be that a party changes his or her mind
alter thinking about the day’s events over night, Warst of all, it may
be that the party felt compelled by his attorney to agree td »
setilement, Whatever the cause, It is worth revisiting the idea of
mgnmg a memorandum at the conclusion of mediation and what
needs to be in that writing.

CR 24 states, “No agreement or cofisent between parties or
attomeys In respect to thé proceedings in & cause, the purport of
which ls disputed, will be regarded by the court., .unless the
evidence thereof shall be in writn% and subscribed by the
attorneys denying the same,” In similar foshion, R(IW 2.44.010 (1)
states that an attorney has the autharity to bind hig client, but that
the coutt shall dicregard all agreements “unless such agreement ..

[is} signed bythe party against whom the same {s alleged, or
his attorney.”

Washington law has been clear sitwe the early 1980°s that srandard
cantract law governs whether the parties have reached & seitlement.
Stottlemyre v. Reed , 33 WiApp. 159, 665 P.2¢ 1383 (1983). It

is interesting to note that although the agreement in Stottlemyre
was only an oral agreement, the appeilate court found that the
attormey’s written represenitation in an affidavit that a setlement
was reached was sufficient to meet the "sighed by the party,,.or his:
attarney” provision of the statute; Some might say that this ruling
was appropriate because “the law favors the private setllement ot
disputes and is inclined to view them with finality”.4 But

counsel should not rely ori such a creative interpretation of the Rule

and statute and should make sure thata settlement document is
erpated and axgped.

Subsequent cases have Hushed out the caurt’s holding in
Stottlemyre by, dlarifying that & party’s subjectivé intent not to be
bound until the execution of a final sett’iement agreement will not
void an otherwise enforceable settlement agreement.3 However, the
agreemenimust not have been reached by fraud, coercion or
mistake.6

The signature of the party’s attorney ié not needed if the parly has
dgned.? Alternatively, Stottlemyte holds thatan au:amey 5
signature alone is adequate to bmd the party assuming all other ;

traituserwe,comi20 00BN Vidom-trgebIng-memoranaum.ah-satiasss "
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things are equal. In this instance, however, the practical effect is
likely to be that the party fives his attorey and | institutes
a thalpractice action.8-

But the coutts have said that the settlement memorandum must
vefer to all material terms, or there is a basis to challenge whether a
sefilemeit was réached, In Howard v. DiMaggio 70 Wn.App,

734, 855 P.2d 335 (1993), thé appellate court found that attorneys
sunpxy agreeing on thesettlement amount (cash plus repayment of
the Plaintiff's PIP carrier) did not cover all material terms. The
appellate court found that the Plaintiff had not agreed to sign
a medical guaranty letter, had not agreed to “the-details of the
release and hold harmless docwments”, and had not'agreed whao
would be the designated payees on the.check, Thus, the alleged
settlement agreement was niot considered enioreeable.

Similarly, i Lavigne v, Green 106 W, App. 12, 23 P.3rd 515 (2001),
the parties attended a mediation at which they agreed on an
amount of settlement. Ne writing was signed. A]legt.dly; the
nsurance adjuster at the mediation said there “were no additional
terms or provisions or conditions on the settlément”.9 However, @
release was sent thatincluded indemnification, hold harmless and
full release language. The party seeking to aveid the

agréement essentially conceded that his mal disagreement

was about the amount of the setilement, but becguse he raised a
genuine issue of matérial fact on the csther terms, theappellate court
sert the rmatter back (6 the trial court for determination. 10

My strang recommendation s to make sure 3 memorandum i3
signed whien you belleve you have reached a settlement. In a
personal injury action, the memorandum shauld indicate the
amount of setilement, that all claims will be released, that

att indemnification and hold harmless as to subrogated interests
will be signed along with a rdeaae, that the lawsuit (If any) will be.
dismissed with prejudice and without costs, and that the parties
acknowledge that the agreemenr is binding and enforceabls.
Defense representatives may simply choose to bring a standardized
settlement agreement and then later supplement it with @ document
that scknowledges receipt of the settiement check by the plaintiff.

In an employment case; the extent of tha terms ¢an be much mare
involved, While 3 mediator can assist in drafing a memorandum
during ot at the end of the mediation, a better practice is for defense
counsel to provide a copy of a praposed setilément agreement

to plaintifi’s counsel prior to the mediatiow and then make changes
as the mediation proceads throughout the day. Not only are the
non-monetary terms (e, confidentiality, na re-hire, no appht,atmn
for rehive, no dispasagement; eic) Quthneel for the plaintift’s

fuips frusanswa. comill HUBA dont-fornet. l!w gt TN urni-aterpdfnmvmnyd
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attorney clearly and concisely, but yon have given the
plaintiff plenty of opportunity to-seek more information about the
meaning of terms before signing.

While these suggestions provide no guarantee that your mediated
settlement agreement will not be challenged, your thent should be
better protected by {Akmg these afficmative staps in mediation,

1. The decision refers to the proceeding with Judge Heavey ag 2
mediation in some places and &3 a settlement conference in
others, Whichever correctly describes the proceedmg. the nge of
a CR 24 document would have alleviated part of Mr, Marshall's
plob&i:‘:ﬂ\b
Z1d
3.279 P.3d at 303, ;n 22,
4. 35 Wn.App. at 173
5 Morrie v, Maks, 69 WL App. 868, 850 .24 1357 (1993).
8. 106 Wn, App 8t 15. The court reviewed each argument underan
abuse of discretion standard and found the évidence lacking in
Patterson. There is an interesting discussion on 2 plaintiff's
mistake as fo policy limits ina med;xtism and subsequent
:aet*lefm.nt in Brinkerhoff v, Campbell, 99 Wri, App. 692, 994 P.2d
911 (3000) that bears reading irt Itz entivety.

7. in re Patterson, 93 Wn.App, 579, 969 P.2d 1106 (1999),

§. Bes, e.g; In re Ferree, 71 WnuApp. 35, 856 P.2d 706 (1993).

9,106 Wn.App. at 15, .

10, See also Veith v, Xterra Wetsults, L.L.C., 183 P.3d 334 (2008) in
which the court succinctly concludes tm’: so long as the parties
are still in negotiation on material terms and have not resolved
their disagreements over some of them, there ig nothing for the
equrt ta enforee. '

E;s@.‘b ﬁ..x%ﬁ“ itle
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June 2013 Bar Bulletin
. |
ik Lnks CR2A: The Way To Go |
Abau KGBA To Confirm Informal
o £ Renaw Onling Ag reeme nts
Sar Bullen ‘ '
Meztings & Evans Cripndar By Kim Schnuelle
Edusation | Tralning
Peo Banp Sprvicey . e e . .
s = : Frank, a aotential client, comes 10 You In a1
uersly .sgitated siatie, Hs was divorced three yoars .
Bt B . zgo and, although the underlying  child '
Pl £oficy & News. -supporl ¢rder requires payments of $600 :
N Ny Tor srties’ daughter Kale !
Bublicatt per mgnth for the parties’ dsughter. .
Hens his ex-wife Serah hes agreed, 8 |
{awist Refara! Service dotumenied fhrough a serles of emalls, fo
D : pay §1,800 per month and has buen delng
Jobg Cepter 5o for the pasl twe years.
Adverlising Rales Het incoma skyracketed attar ohe racatved
o a promption -and, 8§ sha slaind in her *
smails, ghe Talt It was only falr lo ngreass
her support Tor thelr deughter gmmmwe
Sha further staiad that vhe had wun gome
ahiiet supporl workshieets and she. fhougit
this i what tha court would order.
Frank hae eome to rely on the $1,800 to . v
mieet his monthly reeds and ssaumed thal Fiog the Public G
Sarah would keop her writlon prowises lo . . . :
pay Ihis inereased smaunl for  the Ghartabin Aun of ta Tag |
‘forasesatle futurs, Sarsh igsa %’lﬂ"‘!‘g‘mﬁ‘z oo wre s |
these eimelis & buy thair deughler B nov g oo 'F
car qn hor 16t birthday and even Want &0 j@ we )
{ar ag. 1o s'ate she hed “visied dealem and Sholhear |
. G T N !
io suggest specific makos snd moces. e KRV
Samg of these omalie wont t both Frank :
enc thalr daughler, Kate is 96 and has |
@agondod thal ghe 18 segerly awsiting héf ;
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. ew car and requested a specific gar in a
Tweets ny bive colar, to which Sarsh respondsd,
@kfngcaumyaar "Sues,”

; N Four menths: ago, Frank received an emall

e King CounlyB 2 from Sarah stafing et she was swiching

Kngeounlybaw @ back to the amount fisted In the shild

@ el support arder, effective immedialely, and

King Saunty Bar is hlrlngi Frank can't imaging how he will make en ds

Sesking an Accounting raeet en such g small Sum, Sarah also has

‘Coordinator l Join our sated that Kats will need lo gst & job and
team, pay for her awr car how.

For furthar Informstion arfﬂ Feank kept hoping she weid see e gt
to apply (by July 3151, ga

and keep her written promises, hut it did not

tkebe oepfAbout.. come ¢ pess Asids frany the agbvious:
KTBAob... responss of flng for @ cohild sugpdd
- adusiment or modification, which the wise
o practiionar shouwld flle right away; s thery
finiring #accounting: any athar relief thel you can provids Frank?:
#leam #”ﬂﬁw'w“?ﬂﬁ“ - ts there any way vou can help Frank and
A e e e Kate get the promised car [rom Sarah?.
i § m [E} —:3 Denpanding upon their cortent, the sarles of
-amalls: may consilule & vahd cmﬁ
iing County B Agsnciatii -sgreemant batween the paries thal woul
é&?;ﬁg,iﬁf fl f:::’?gc;‘ i be -anforceable as g child  support
" Beattle We'*."éfi"-ﬂ‘é: ' -gcjustmant in court, CR2A reads =8 follows:
Mk (208) 267-7100 N sdgeement of conseni hetweer
o o E e T N &g meent between the
Vo (206) 267-7088 ot

parties of aligmays in fespect fo the
preceadings In & cuwse, lhe purpart ol
which 18 disputed, wilt be regarded by the
ol unlzes the same shad have been
made and assented to ih apen court on the
recard, or entared In the minulay or unlsss
tha eviderte thereof shall ba i wrillng and

subscribad by the atmﬁ@y@ ﬁenykrg the
same, .

CRE:‘\ emly applies; 1) when the agreement
was made by the parties oF atiorneys: in
ragpect (o the procesdings in g cause, and
2} the purpr:ﬂ ‘af the agrsoment s
disputed.! When these elements § are mal,

CR24  ‘precludes enforcoment of &
ditputas setfurmsnt agreamagit oot made in
wriling of put on the record, whether or not
sommon faw requirements ane- meu?t 1t
dues not, however, aifect an sgreement

madg in wmmg or put-on the record,’ R

The puUpDse m this rula is tn avole dmuten
gnd o give - carleinty and fineily .
spillements end compromises, Thue, #
thems g a dispule thal negotiations
cuiminated in an sgroement whers thera 78
fonsompllance Wil the rie, the cowst
iust dwegwd i ﬂb wcdem:e 8

As a sefllernant egraaliant (s & oontract,
the baslc fules of canltact law apply.? The
bursden of proving this contract would be on
the persdr ssSerding s pwistence® The
. goat of consindng the contract would ten

It ke, mgﬁméammssmmtmamuﬂsaniﬁ‘ﬂaﬁﬁmmﬁmm‘ "
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ba to deten mme and effectuate the parties’
mutual intent.?

M
f b principal case on %h@ factors neccseary
to: reach a binding CR2A fn Washington Is

- Morris v Maks® In determining whether
| informal writings are suffigisn to establish 2
‘cordeact by lhomselves, B courd must
consider whether: 1) the sublect maller bas
bean agrnad wpor; ) the temma are all
stated in the Informal wrlting; end 3} the

parties Intended a binding agreemant prior
to the time -of stgntng and gelivery of a
formal centrad o

-actor; in light of subsequenyt tace mw in
order lo detenming how the courld have
gefined the paramsters & those
reguirements.

The Subject Matter Hes Been Agmed
Upen

Clearly, under basic contract faw, ihers (s
né valld contract unlil an offar i$ gooepled
and: agresment ls feachad?  Althaugh
agrsement is'{he firg! of the Marms fnclors;
Washinglon  courts’ typieslly bypass this
faztor In favar of en analysis of the feth:;whg
tee  faclors, Thus,  while pariles may
gomatimes, couch thelr arguments a8 "ng
agreement was roached®'t this author
eould Vind no pubiishad cases un paind that
wera determinad an this faclor alone,

Rahwgr, the couts have Instead focused
thelr analysls on the two remalning Mords
faciors, Therefors, in deciding whelher
Sarah’s emails constittg = walld CR2A
aqreamanh o prudent praciitioner woyld

touh lightly on this initlat factor, and fecus
hiz ot het brifing on the other wo factors.

The Tarms Ars All Stated in the Informal
Writing

Mm&pie tases, many of which sre
published'® and thus not generslly sited
hars‘ have diszussed what constitutes: &
"maieral lerm™ In an Iotomal agreamant, i
ihe correspantisnes "doge pol contein the
dstuils of the sstliement,” thait i I5-net.a
Sl GR24 soregmant,

In Evang & Sons v. Clty of Yakima, sithough
-2t gaad setilemeny figure of $40,000 was
expressly lsted, tha patlies. never agresd to
A relagse-of-Hability term Iy thalr sxchangad
tetlers, Finding this fo be & matenal lam,
fne gowrl hald thal whlle thé lettarz
demanstraled the parties’ desire 1o redsh @
satlioment, ng bindlng CR2A aqreamsnl
axisten, 8

I S ) " v
mtaa.fwv ket mgmc&ammvmwmﬂ:atbuiiakmm\fmw,es:x? AMARR=06S Yoar=2101 SEADeagluledd e
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I genersl, terms of releass, indemnity and.

hold Rarmigss are material terms!®
Howevet, If thoss terms aren't maleral o
the faci§ al hand, they may not ba
dispositive In detarmining whether a CR2A

agreement exists or not'® As such, the-
wudent practitioner enalyzes, baset upon
thé specific facls of the cdeg, what the
‘matarial terms* would be in & given
situation and compares  any  swiilten
documentation (o fhis analysis,

in the hypothaticel listed abeve, for
exampls, Kate's detailed daseription of the
ter she. deshes, followsd by BSareh's
response of "Sure,” and fombloed with
Saralvs eariier weilton promises o pay for
Tha cad in full, might bs held to ba sufficient

to cover alt matergl terms regarding this.
lﬂﬁ’d&

The Parties intended a:  Binding

Agreement Priof o the Time of ngnmg a
Formal Coutract

Washinglon equtts havs loag adopiad an
“objective manifestation’ astendard es° jo
vehathiof pamas fntent to: be bound by an

hgreamam, The cout! thus impuss o 8
persen an Intention :corrésponding to' Me
reasonable maamtﬁ af his or her wourlds
ang gota, 1B

in Marris v. Maks, The eourt found an “intent
1o ke bound" bassd upon express language:
contsined in 1) a contimaiion isiter sant to
Mske' oulining the wssurance of hig
‘ecgaplance; 2) = laller written by Waks's
sitorney staling het the terms of this savlsr
letter accuratoly reflecled ths -agrsement;

antt 3} Maks's personal representetion o

his bank that he liad ssllied his case witly
fdoris by agreement'? The prudent
praciitioner weuld ihus examing gk faet

of ihe cese lo detarming what laclons
obioclivaly Wﬁuiﬂ yinld a  ressonabis

conglusion of an intent 16 be bourd,
/:i& Fw fattor 5 whathar the ageegmunt Y,
ffgza been signed A setilemeni agreemsnt |
may be found ineffzttual under CRIA tiz
mgnad byt psrtses {o bz pouna, ﬁ“ .

in Jsth vt )ﬂ"arm Welsuits; LLC, 2 Btth:sugxh
the court found fhal an  ‘“expression
{cormmunicated by word, sign or wiiling [
the person meking the efiar) of tha Inteny lo
ba kound" was a bonchmerk of conimaot
actepisncs, he courd mnethelese ehurviad
the existenca of an enforcsatle contragh,

centering al feast part of #s miling oh the
fact that no agroemsnt hed baen phyaically
signed by the panlemf’g

wwRe b, om&mmwawertﬁ.‘bamu‘mmﬁﬁww £apr TV onth=088 Yea=20 IR M D-anisie 24 nitgy
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\

St LARF(RREWY \
1
Canvgragly, r@us?ng 1o sign an agreament \
& @ manifestafion that the pary did not i
intend to be tound.2? In the hypothetical
listad atiove, the parties exchangad amails
but -Garah didnt sotuelly sign any :
gdocument. She could thus argue that ne |
valld CR2A agreemtent euisied,

|
Eved & aursory review of the applicable 1
¢ase {aw shows that the cutcomes of this |
ype of fligaton are vety fact driven, 1,
Accordingly,” Yhe wisé .practitionse wil &
clossly ‘exemine ol of the emails ‘\
sxchanged bolween (e panles lo \

determing whether tha Morms faclars have
been met. '

Depanding upon the sxact lenguags in the \‘
‘emall chain, for exampls, Saah's respunse |
of "Sure" tg Kate's spevific ¢sf reguest !
might be tonstusd as a binding Gontcact ‘
ihat could be snforced Wa & mation o \\
enforce  under family law  concepls,

Likewise, Sarah's many emails agreaing to \
pay 31,800, especially wharr coupled wiih E
hee aclual performance of this. promise for ‘

two years, may also visld & valld CR24
agreement, '

t
. . . |
in both of these inslances, Ssrah may |
nanetheless sssert 3) WHat nething was !
signad By any parly; b} thet under Weth no ‘
CRA pgreement was reached;. and ¢ \
therefars, she is not obligated to purchsse
@ car or pay increased suppost,

# Wil be up o he expedonced praciitionsr \
0 sift e facts and wrillnge In the given \
case to detsrming whelbsr the Mors K
faciors are. pregend. If they are, - and ihe ‘
court sgrees with your 3nalysis, Fravk may
be able © recoup four months of underpald
chifd supper, wnder 2 revised ahild support

|
brdee, and his daughter Kate mey recaive
her ear aftor all.

1 Mominge of Fepeas, ¥4 Wi, Apg, 35, 98
{1093y,

‘\

|

\

a

2 Iy re Paltersan & Taylhar, 93 Wn, App. \
§76, 682-83 (1898),

3 .

4 Eddisrrien v McQhan, 45 Wn.2d 439, 432
(1854), '

§ Morfis v Maks, 88 Wn. App. BGS, 868
{1093} Stoflamyra « Reed, I8 Wit App,
168, 171 {1983},

& Johnzon v Nagl, 50 Wi,24 87, 81 (1657) )"
T Hall u Custom Cratt Fixturas, ine. 87 Wa. |
App, 1.7 (1897},
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W b Wz

B 69 Wi, Anp, 855 {1993},
¥ i, a{ 369,

10 Mansen v Transword Wi
sen v SWond Wisies TV~
Spokane, 111 W, App. 381, 370 (2002
11 See geneally Lavigng
» janecal ane v Green,
| \’:’z.‘ .Apg, 12 16 {2004} . (*Ha fiz‘n}mi?'
gggj;gf mmzi e agraemant ia
orteatle becaysg it Ing materat
terms {o which he diéien; e, oo

agree."}.
12 See, e.g., Mamiecs of ’ b
s * Ll T & -fFu’ﬂ(; ?‘F} Wﬂ.
App Eaas {2007} {informat wiiing providing
that “Jod; You Win; anjoy the spolls of oyr
marriaga, Good Bys, Jefi g not gontain
any Saqﬁnéta lerms that mignt [ustiy &
ggg:':‘;usmn was reached In which ell fhe
parties’ proparites ang flabilities had bagr
canceded {o tha wite), 7 1A e

13 Evans-ang 8ons Sty of Yakims, 138
1 and ¥ ! g, 136
Wa. App, 471 {2006}, v 1

14 jd,

1§ Howarg v Cimaggie, 70 Wn. App. 734
734 (1593) {regarding es&appai"isﬁu;q-i}r. *
18 Lavigne v. Grean, fols 11 af 20 {failura
{o affgfass indemnity and hold hanmisss
pravgiony regarding 8 fire damzge lawsult
may or may nol be materal® as e
appeliant had not ieniifisd "any tability or
advérse cansaquences o which he wiuld
ba Bxposed by’ the terme of hese
provisions and he hes wol olfsred ‘any
avidence of subrogated of Hienable claims"),

17 Pluembing Shop v. Pitts, 87 Wn.2d. & 14,

517 (1965), S '

18 I,
1§ §8 Wi, App. 865;

20 Bryant v Palmer Coling Ooié Cov, OF
Wn, App, 178, 176 (1983),

21 144 Wn. App, 362 {2008).
22 . ot 388,

23 Meirg Mol Sarvices. Oprg. v UEW,
Convnunications, 328 Fad 986, 1015
{2003} {distinguished on an uarelsied point
e .unreported  decisfons I Linkdine
Communicatians Ing, v, SBC C4, Inc., 3004
WL BS503772 (2004), and AMeKenzie -

Willamette Hosp, « Pagchheaith, 2003 WL
235E7S0 (Z003)).
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CHELAN COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT
FRIDAY, 0872572001

TCBSPECIALSETEA0AM JUN 55 m‘
JUDGE TRAV ‘S £ BRANDT/SB Chaian CGLMV &e "
19:3-00275-04
KERR, STEVEN M -P (by Zoom video).  BEATTIE, PAULH, JR (by Zeom video)
Eziﬁs, KAY LUANMR -P : MALLERGAARD, KAMBRA LEE P
BANCTIONS 3:00 PM MTHRG
MOTION HEARTNG RE MUSTANG: JULY 12,2021 AT 230 P, M,
r-‘{g Recerding start: 3:00 pam,

v Recordlng sndt i35 pans ‘

The Court raviewed the history of the esse. Me. Beattie sdvised ho did not reallze the Musteny.

was 86 issue here. MY, Beastle advised e would stigulate to ceatinuing tho resiraining order.
urthl g flrther hedring when the Mustang can be sddressed, Ms, Metlsrgaard objeated,

* gdvising hay ptasrﬁnga were clanr and that the Court was to sddress the Mustang today, Ms,
Mallerganrd moved the Court togrant the peimaneat resteainlng order to:iuz."ulsv.

"The Courd advised It st set-a heering for the Vusfemg& The Court found Mr, Pinea's
desleration persuasive sinoe he had engerience with the Thunderbixd, Uthlizling the Hn,gurty
valuntion Yool | the Court was not pereu«cieé zLe Thunderbird was In mint condition, bu? wag

somewhore between uxcellent al £29,600 and fuir ot S!S 700, The Court 26t the \fulua of the
'"‘l'uréerbivd a ﬁza,%& -

Tr\a Cﬂur*: m.dd xhd no weidencs that Mr, Lﬂﬁ‘&z’ wes neglizent innot i nmrming his oliem
regarding the depushion. Tre Cour zranted Me, Mellergasrd's motien fer sanotions and
awprded 5:1 500, Ths Court continusd the restrainers untll the next hearlng date. Order

W entered, The Court wamed the petitioroy that the restrainers are sontinuéd beyond Tut y 6, #
W 202l Ma M su::.-gnurt shaul send g uQP}" o ir. Beattle,

—
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Gmale Depositon - ' \_\’ !
Y’* s P ‘o,‘% i ¥ . | . \ “‘ .
Pl ' stava heas 4aloveheeb@qmaltioom>
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‘ \
Deposition , |
Winesanges | | \
Juedln Goliier <Justin@intawlo.coms | Man, Mer 20, 2021 &% 2:20 #M
T yiove heeh <slovelineb@gmallsama ‘ ;
e *\
‘v, s . ” |
: ! ‘4 |
\'\
FJust ot n crder dignnd by Judge Brandt ta requits you to ailend & depaaliton sl my offigs on Thursday st 1030 or iﬁ\ths
aitnenativa 1o e over the Thundsibird or ihs whesabouts of it ~ |
» i * \\
) . : l - i, \
Tow bsitiement dgrasimant pravided thel o sosur and brless &t coowrs then they'll seek & maney juggmiit for he car ldg
ot fnow whete se car ls nor wiat it 18 worlh, a \
. K\
H v be Fossible for you ta tave an arasl warrant tesued for tallure | sppear, | urderstend whal you hav said in the \
past zoaul 60t lianding btgt {danot ihtng { makes any sgnss end you need to atlend of Wrn over iho e, \
Justin

. B \
stave beeb <lovahecb@omalleam»  +
3 gl Colliar Guaingislawiioamms

\

|
Mo, Mair 28, 2021 =1 2:30
Bary fheva s ldp | have (o 20 1o Montans ¢ AL

?\M
iras dave - : the legal work | hadl (o duel wiih took menthe how i Ir falr Liwepond In
h;?ifg’;‘; &;ﬁ’é&i’a’é:’;“a&’ m“-‘? %ﬁ‘;afﬁ ﬁf?“? %?K‘“Q!!hiﬁgﬁ when thay knew | was 5t work orgone, Everyihing | have
bt 'wes 2 e or sbaolute mantiulation, | wontio e 8 ona milon dellar lawsult'on her gor &l the
prodtaing sho hes made for me, i mikfon dalter iawsull'on her gor el the
{Quoted ter Nighn)
%

\
. . . . . }
Bteve hesb Siveheasi@omal.coms Mun, Mar 20, 2024 s 282 P
B dushin Collier <Sustin@idlawiivabme |
\ #FpERs jinen und evaryons else wans tu prediudica tremieives in her Bt - Moo of the Wings toidyoutoese
ar for by happaned , { {hink & [ ime for B shange.of venue ond possibly a desodimination iaweull fled, Nobbdy sosme |
10 worthad about hhop pest solions ent spgressions . ik | oould win my regueste in s jury tial, She mdtd um intos |
wine siul and 2 sleap exourd, ' ‘ |
[Quarled tant fiidan) |
) . . [} . \
slevo hagh ..?;m ¢‘Q§139§3@§W“,GQQ§K: '\?VBC}; Mer 31, 202'? uf Bi54 P S‘i;» \
o Juatin Callier <}ug§!n@;e‘ﬁswﬁmzr_§§::_ R
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Glkes ha tight o davelop & hate for ma €2¢ iy Yo run ovet e Witk hor B Whai glvse har (s right to
to my rostdica wv loke INRGE Whiar Sh know | sm nol ;i‘}:mné i r'-.ezress tid anything ks thal W ber, whel glves Ksy
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\
fivall - Gupoaition %.
ory of Bier rggressions ot sha fias brought on ma.

3 ‘\ £,
e havo loft me ot to dry anst hava allowed these pecgle lo meke

sqesslons tovasts e, Theae queslions from thar mitst ba snswered by (W e fosava 18 WG‘M oher
f:zefxwl%z;mtk :T&rsjlar e o councling T U3, | G ok aven gol my s pupoy promised by i, L&Y We e
ol s el T o e oo ) et e g wl simost sy, |

O ban, Mar 38,2081, 220 PM Justin Collier < > wrole: ‘;

et it Biddn} \
Justin Colller <lustin@lotavdioooms _ Wed, Mar 31, 2024 \at 57 Fh
To: stave heeb <glevehaan@omall.éoms i ’ \

\
1
3

Yous loid mo you wareivt soming, Twlos;

The ceﬁri tenorler then scheduift sonmiing slse 5c K cannol happen lamoimow Rew. \
Ml e Ihorm move 1t at least 2 weaks 96 you can hievé s and slaap, | ava fio da what g descripiion laweult s,
net Bleg another lawsull in this oaza.

' t
We sre dowin o the ihunderiied, e st just cown te it , \\
Sartfam Ry Phova: . \
% N \
o Mar §9, 2023, 2 B34 PU, stowe hesb s < > wrnte ‘
Rowolnd fowf hiedur] ‘ \
810 lieeh <stavshenb@gmallwarms

\Wed, Mar 31, 202 54 10135 PM

ot Juatn Gotlr ejustingloiavilowams
ol you fram ey ame whst L wanted ko aus ber or , i wee no prcblar for yais i ia fay Monay end ot ifo 8s |
inslruoist you to do, You kai the B yo oy money end net do 2 |
¥

)

mandpuletion end bulishlt In this cesa snd you ¢t rothing but lel them have the up-ie‘r
nend In Sk whole mattae, you wil be Bing 2 lawault on e matier ¢ b susing you. . bty te
roptosent your Hlonts e 2 Caate o 1ot e riwlli be susing you. You havg g rasponnloiity i
{Qvotad at fidden| :

t 80t 9n your-ass end salleat money, | peracnely think thay bought you aul,

b
atave haod <stoveherb@igmall.goms ' Wod. Mar 5 1ead
Toz dualls Celler <ustinleiawlo.com> d Mar 3¢, 2&3?ﬁ-al 104 PM
sk e you iow fam wmning z GOMmpiaint fo the washingten state by osen on Uila mallar . you Wregtonad me Wi ‘\
Bssints fall tene, | had o lob la da in semnisia onS §WaS UD F MAre than 29 hours b gef Gack heps . are you toling me
raw fat te wmg (L IR @O0Ing 10 oot vyl you and the gaopie hat bought you ewl. ‘
ted e doyn) s T

's E
dustls Collier <Juelin@isiawliooare L
To; siove heab <atovehesb@gmaticams ]

. o
Thw, Apf 4, 2021 78 900 AW
} S
Ok, ¥ wiharawing, [ et yout faweil, | igaled ing cose and you renkly do-nat (xten. You @t fisten to the judgs, |
You didn'tlisten 1o the vomimissionet: You didnt zter to e, You ol foll 10 aten. '

1 told yoit 10 comam L e depeaitich, Boocause you have ib coms, You fold ma you w
1 e dogusilen seheduled wiyich | eatd wee & misteks,

arén't saming. You then didnt ceme |
They thaa sot en arder tequiring

. ing you 18 eome 1 anther doposiior: iR 18 116 proceys, You then toid e f no uncartali
terms dwiag you weren'l coming: ' .

v

3&

|

i

\.
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|
|
. «  Cwd - Goposition ‘
The only actudl fssua e the tundertind car thet somehow you dont know what heppenad to |t which seens incredibly
unbeflovable 1o everyane tovolvad, ‘ '
» y

*

Aot e and you T8 Wil s yo ey THRSAIY
Wl B
Senhfrom my IPhane

On Mar 31, 2021, &t 10:45 BN, siovs heefr < * witgle:

i

\fivetet tat hiddaot

plevk hogh <dlavehach@omall.aonms

‘&
i
; Thy, Agr 4, 2021 =} 5:108 &AM
! Jugln Colier <justngziciawlie.com . |
Thw peatlan 16 you dont do anylning you exa hired ta do snd predjudice yourself agalnst your ctont and pul hir In & i ‘[
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CRITES SEED. INC.

212 W, 8t Street
P.O. BOX 8912
MOSCOW, IDAHO 83843-1412
PHONE: 203—882—5519
FAX 208-882-6464
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|
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|
|
|

To whism it may concern:

%
Re: Steve Heeh l
|
K

Mr. Steve Heeb has been hauling loads of sced for Crites Seed, fne since 2013, Steve has been great uhuui being
available whe we need him t0 haul anytime of the year, TInwever, the most important hauling he does For Crites
arethe loads to our rail car site with customer packed seed. Linfortunately, BNSF doesn®t always dchve'r the rail
cars on the dates we ask for them, so we have to wait {or visuul confirmation of the rail ears arrivil. W are only
allowed ta have the mil car ‘spotted® at our site for 24 hours withowt ipcurring fees. That gives us just 2 "?s]i hours
to move the product 1o rail site, load the car and release it for pickup. With this being said, Steve stays om
standby and is availuble for us during this fime, Steve wag hauling ta the rail site February 119,202 I, m

d wits
on standby the week of Tnbmar\' 13" 10 19% for the 3 il cars we had ordered that week.

Plouse feel free to contact me it you huve any questions,

Thank you,

Tarun Rosenberger, Manager -
Crites Seed, Inc - Quincy
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FILED

JULY 2, 2024
In the Office of the Clerk of Court
WA State Court of Appeals Division 111

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON
DIVISION THREE

STEVEN HEEB, )
) No. 39491-3-1ll
Appellant, )
)
V. )
)
KAY SIKES, ) UNPUBLISHED OPINION
)
Respondent. )

COONEY, J. — Steven Heeb filed a complaint against Kay Sikes for distribution of
property and debts accrued during their relationship. The parties ultimately executed a
Civil Rule (CR) 2A settlement agreement. During the litigation, Ms. Sikes obtained
temporary restraining orders against Mr. Heeb. Sanctions were also entered against Mr.
Heeb for his untimely setting of a motion and his failure to appear at multiple
depositions. Mr. Heeb appeals, arguing that the judges and commissioner were biased
against him, that his attorney violated multiple Rules of Professional Conduct (RPC), that
he was deprived of a fair trial, and that the settlement agreement was not valid.

We disagree and affirm.

BACKGROUND

Mr. Heeb and Ms. Sikes were in a committed intimate relationship from May 2010

until June 2018. In 2019, with the assistance of Attorney Justin Collier, Mr. Heeb filed a



No. 39491-3-111

Heeb v. Sikes

complaint “Seeking Determination and Distribution of Property in a Committed Intimate
Relationship.” Clerk’s Papers (CP) at 4 (boldface and some capitalization omitted). Mr.
Heeb requested the court “determine the properties of the parties subject to distribution,”
the “indebtedness of the parties subject to allocation,” and that the court “decree a fair
and equitable distribution” of the assets and debts. Id. at 4-5.

Ms. Sikes, also represented by counsel, answered the complaint and filed a motion
for an order for protection against Mr. Heeb. Her motion was accompanied by multiple
declarations that alleged Mr. Heeb was stalking Ms. Sikes and that she was fearful of
him. Following a hearing on the motion, Commissioner Tracy S. Brandt issued a
temporary restraining order that required Mr. Heeb to stay away from Ms. Sikes. Later,
Commissioner Brandt denied a motion brought by Mr. Heeb to dismiss the restraining
order.

In September 2020, a settlement conference was held before Judge Leslie A. Allan
and a CR 2A agreement was signed by the parties. The court noted that the parties had
“been working from a property matrix” and “[e]ach party and their attorney . . . had the
opportunity to review [it] and have all four initialed at the bottom of each page indicating
their agreement as to how the various items would be distributed.” Rep. of Proc. (RP) at
34-35. Among other obligations, Ms. Sikes was to arrange for the acquirement of a

“black 2011 Mustang within thirty days.” Id. at 37. At the end of the settlement
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conference, the only issue remaining was a 1955 Ford Thunderbird that Mr. Heeb and
Ms. Sikes each alleged was in the other’s possession.

The court reiterated the agreed upon property distribution on the record. The court
asked Ms. Sikes, “If the Thunderbird is located so that you can retrieve it, is this the
settlement that you’ve reached?” Id. at 40. Ms. Sikes responded, “Yes, Your Honor.”

Id. The court asked Mr. Heeb, “contingent upon the location of the Thunderbird, as a
contingent for the other side, is this the agreement that you’ve reached today?” Id. at 41.
Mr. Heeb responded in the affirmative.

Thereafter, Ms. Sikes scheduled a deposition of Mr. Heeb to ascertain the location
of the Thunderbird. Mr. Heeb did not appear for this deposition, nor two other
depositions that were subsequently scheduled. Consequently, Ms. Sikes brought a
motion for sanctions under CR 37(d) against Mr. Heeb. At the hearing on the motion,
held before Judge Travis C. Brandt, Mr. Heeb’s attorney, Mr. Collier, appeared and
stated, “I don’t know why my client, frankly, wouldn’t appear at a des—deposition. He
sent a cryptic email to me about how he wasn’t served and he knew the law and didn’t
have to appear.” 1d. 46. Mr. Collier also stated that he worried, “frankly, about [Mr.
Heeb’s] competency, if he really understands the process.” Id. Mr. Collier conceded that
the court “realistically can impose attorney fees” against Mr. Heeb. |d. Judge Brandt
awarded Ms. Sikes sanctions against Mr. Heeb for his failure to appear at the depositions.

After the hearing, Mr. Collier withdrew as Mr. Heeb’s counsel.

3
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Mr. Heeb then brought a pro se motion “For Sanctions be Stricken or Transferred
to Justin Collier.” CP at 105 (boldface and some capitalization omitted). In support of
his motion, Mr. Heeb filed a declaration and attached e-mail communications between
himself and Mr. Collier. The e-mails demonstrated that Mr. Collier notified Mr. Heeb of
the scheduled depositions at least a few days before each deposition. In response to Mr.
Heeb’s motion, Ms. Sikes filed another motion for CR 37(d) sanctions for having to
respond. A hearing was held and the court reserved ruling on further sanctions.

Later, Mr. Heeb acquired new counsel, Paul Beattie. At a hearing on June 25, the
court revisited Ms. Sikes’s request and awarded her another $1,500 in sanctions against
Mr. Heeb for his failure to attend another deposition and for Ms. Sikes having to respond
to his untimely motion to have sanctions against him stricken or transferred to Mr.
Collier.

Mr. Heeb continued to claim he no longer had the Thunderbird and provided the
value range of the Thunderbird from the Hagerty valuation tool. The Hagerty valuation
tool assessed the vehicle’s value between $18,700 and $41,500. Mr. Heeb also provided
a declaration from Marco Pena who claimed the Thunderbird was in poor condition and
was only worth $5,000 to $10,000. Ms. Sikes disagreed with Mr. Heeb’s valuation,
arguing that the Thunderbird was worth between $43,000 and $65,000. The court
determined the value of the Thunderbird was $22,000, and awarded Ms. Sikes a judgment

in that amount. There was also contestation related to the Mustang. At Mr. Heeb’s

4
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request, issues related to the Mustang and a new request from Ms. Sikes for a permanent
restraining order were continued. At a later hearing, the court granted a judgment in
favor of Ms. Sikes and against Mr. Heeb in the amount of $9,000 for the Mustang and
entered a restraining order for 12 months.

Mr. Heeb appeals.?

ANALYSIS

On appeal, Mr. Heeb’s arguments are generally unclear. He seems to contend that
the commissioner and judges were biased against him, that his attorney violated several
RPCs, that his right to a fair and impartial trial was violated, and the settlement
agreement was not valid. For the reasons below, we either affirm the trial court or
decline to review Mr. Heeb’s alleged error.

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT WAS BIASED

Although Mr. Heeb’s argument is abstruse, he seems to argue that the
commissioner and judges were biased against him. In particular, he argues that

Commissioner Brandt and Judge Brandt, who both heard various motions in this case,

11t appears Mr. Heeb is appealing a motion for reconsideration. However, the
motion for reconsideration is not contained in the record. In his notice of appeal, where
it asks for the decision or court order being appealed, Mr. Heeb wrote “Hearings
10/21/2019 through 10/28/21 hearing.” CP at 290. Also, on the notice of appeal,
underneath the language stating “Copies of these decision or orders are attached to this
Notice” Mr. Heeb handwrote “I have all hearings already.” Id. The attached document
to the notice of appeal in the record is simply the cover page of the transcript of
proceedings.
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were nepotistic. He also appears to assert that the court erred by ordering sanctions
against him. We disagree with both arguments.

“Due process, the appearance of fairness doctrine and Canon [2.11] of the Code of
Judicial Conduct . . . require a judge to disqualify himself if he is biased against a party or
his impartiality may reasonably be questioned.” State v. Dominguez, 81 Wn. App. 325,
328, 914 P.2d 141 (1996). However, there is a presumption that a judge performs his or
her functions regularly and properly without bias or prejudice. Kay Corp. v. Anderson,
72 Wn.2d 879, 885, 436 P.2d 459 (1967); Jones v. Halvorson-Berg, 69 Wn. App. 117,
127, 847 P.2d 945 (1993). Thus, a party seeking to overcome that presumption must
offer some kind of evidence of a judge’s actual or potential bias. Wolfkill Feed &
Fertilizer Corp. v. Martin, 103 Wn. App. 836, 841, 14 P.3d 877 (2000); Dominguez, 81
Wn. App. at 329. Other than generally disagreeing with the commissioner’s and the
judge’s rulings, Mr. Heeb offers no evidence of the trial court’s alleged bias against him.
Consequently, his argument fails.

Mr. Heeb also takes exception to the sanctions ordered against him for failing to
appear at multiple depositions and for Ms. Sikes having to respond to his untimely
motion “For Sanctions be Stricken or Transferred to Justin Collier.” CP at 105 (boldface
and some capitalization omitted). We review a lower court’s decision on the imposition
of sanctions for an abuse of discretion. Wash. State Physicians Ins. Exch. & Ass’nv.

Fisons Corp., 122 Wn.2d 299, 338, 858 P.2d 1054 (1993). A “trial court abuses its
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discretion if its decision is manifestly unreasonable or based on untenable grounds or
untenable reasons.” In re Marriage of Littlefield, 133 Wn.2d 39, 46-47, 940 P.2d 1362
(1997). A “trial judge has wide latitude to determine what sanctions are proper in a given
case.” Deutscher v. Gabel, 149 Wn. App. 119, 123, 202 P.3d 355 (2009).

To the extent Mr. Heeb argues that Ms. Sikes’s CR 37 motion for sanctions was
improperly brought, he is incorrect. Ms. Sikes filed a CR 37(d) motion for sanctions
against Mr. Heeb alleging he failed to attend scheduled depositions. A hearing was held
and sanctions were ordered against Mr. Heeb. Shortly thereafter, Mr. Heeb’s counsel
withdrew and Mr. Heeb brought a pro se motion for sanctions to be stricken or
transferred to Justin Collier. Ms. Sikes responded to the motion and requested further
sanctions that were later ordered against Mr. Heeb.

Mr. Heeb alleges that the original CR 37(d) motion violated CR 11(b) because it
was not brought separately from any other motion. However, CR 11(b) does not read as
Mr. Heeb alleges. Absent from CR 11(b) is any language that requires a motion for
sanctions be brought separately from any other motion. Further, even if the rule required
what Mr. Heeb alleges, Ms. Sikes’s motion would have satisfied the rule. Her motion for
CR 37(d) sanctions only requested sanctions for Mr. Heeb’s failure to appear at his
scheduled depositions.

Mr. Heeb’s argument boils down to his disagreement with the court’s ruling on the

motions for sanctions. However, other than expressing his general disapproval of the
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court’s rulings, Mr. Heeb does not argue why or how the court erred by ordering
sanctions against him. State v. Stubbs, 144 Wn. App. 644, 652, 184 P.3d 660 (2008)
(“Passing treatment of an issue or lack of reasoned argument is insufficient to allow for
our meaningful review.”), rev'd on other grounds, 170 Wn.2d 117, 240 P.3d 143 (2010).
Indeed, the record reflects that Mr. Heeb missed multiple scheduled depositions. The
trial court did not abuse its discretion when it ordered sanctions against Mr. Heeb.

WHETHER MR. HEEB’S ATTORNEY VIOLATED THE RPC

Mr. Heeb protests the representation afforded him by Mr. Collier. Mr. Heeb
alleges his attorney violated RPC 1.2, 1.3, and 1.4.

The state bar association’s disciplinary process should handle alleged violations of
the RPCs, not this court. State v. Lord, 117 Wn.2d 829, 887, 822 P.2d 177 (1991),
abrogated on other grounds by State v. Schierman, 192 Wn.2d 577, 438 P.3d 1063
(2018). The proper “remedy for a claimed violation of the RPC is a request for discipline
by the bar association.” Id. Thus, we decline to further address this issue.

WHETHER MR. HEEB’S RIGHT TO A FAIR AND IMPARTIAL TRIAL WAS VIOLATED

Mr. Heeb alleges a violation of “Rule 4.6(c)” led to a deprivation of his rights
under the Fifth and Sixth Amendments to the United States Constitution.? Br. of

Appellant at 10; U.S. ConsT. amend. V, VI. However, he provides no analysis of the

2 The Superior Court Civil Rules lack a “Rule 4.6(c).” Presumably, the appellant
is referencing Superior Court Criminal Rule 4.6(c) that, in part, dictates notice
requirements for depositions in criminal cases.

8
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issue or any citation to authority, nor does he explain how his rights were violated. The
lack of any reasoned argument precludes any meaningful review. Stubbs, 144 Wn. App.
at 652. Moreover, a trial was never held; Mr. Heeb’s complaint was resolved through a
settlement agreement. Thus, we decline to address this issue.

WHETHER THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT IS VALID

Throughout Mr. Heeb’s briefing, he seems to take issue with the CR 2A settlement
agreement, arguing it is not valid. However, Mr. Heeb was present at the CR 2A
settlement conference, signed the settlement agreement, and explicitly agreed to the
settlement in open court. Mr. Heeb’s argument that it was “improperly filed” as part of
Ms. Sikes’s CR 37 motion for sanctions is also unpersuasive. Br. of Appellant at 12.

Affirmed.

A majority of the panel has determined this opinion will not be printed in the

Washington Appellate Reports, but it will be filed for public record pursuant to RCW

2.06.040.
Cooney, J.
WE CONCUR:
Forny & A N
Fearing, J. . Pennell, J.
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CASE # 394913
Steven Heeb v. Kay Sikes
CHELAN COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT No. 1930027504

Mr. Heeb and Ms. Sikes:
Enclosed please find a copy of the opinion filed by the Court today.

A party need not file a motion for reconsideration as a prerequisite to discretionary
review by the Supreme Court. RAP 13.3(b); 13.4(a). If a motion for reconsideration is filed, it
should state with particularity the points of law or fact which the moving party contends the court
has overlooked or misapprehended, together with a brief argument on the points raised. RAP
12.4(c). Motions for reconsideration which merely reargue the case should not be filed.

Motions for reconsideration, if any, must be filed within twenty (20) days after the filing of
the opinion. Please file the motion electronically through this court’s e-filing portal or if in paper
format, only the original motion need be filed. If no motion for reconsideration is filed, any
petition for review to the Supreme Court must be filed in this court within thirty (30) days after
the filing of this opinion. The motion for reconsideration and petition for review must be
received (not mailed) on or before the dates they are due. RAP 18.5(c).

Sincerely,

' |
\\)A?A»\_h})-\'\v\
Tristen Worthen

Clerk/Administrator

TLW:jab
Attachment

c: E-mail—Hon. Travis C. Brandt





